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he discipline of adapted karate helps folks mentally and physically. Team
member Maria Garcia participates in the sport through ResCare’s Inland
Adult Development Center in Rancho Cucamonga, CA. Her team has won medals
and wild applause at martial arts championships for people with disabilities.

_ | About Our Company

esCare, founded in 1974, offers services to some
R 32,000 people in 33 states, Washington, DC,
Puerto Rico and Canada. ResCare is a human service
company that provides residential, therapeutic, job
training and educational supports to people with
developmental or other disabilities, to youth with
special needs and to adults who are experiencing

barriers to employment.

ResCare’s name is based on two words: Respect and
Care. ResCare lives those words through a strong
mission statement and the ResCare Quality Way,
which serve as the foundation for all of our systems
and procedures. Our ultimate goal is the best quality of
life for the people we support. ResCare’s services are
tailored to meet the specific needs of each individual.
Our greatest asset is the experience and expertise
gained from nearly three decades of service to the
nation’s most vulnerable populations. This provides
stability, which is vitally important to the individuals
we support, their families and our employees. Our
extensive quality assurance and best practices programs
are designed to provide measurable, quantifiable

results. The Company is based in Louisville, KY.

Photo credits: Kenny Howard (throwing softball) by Joy Manis, Joy-Us Photography, Pflugerville, TX; Shemika Carter (graduating) by Pam
Spaulding, © The Courier Journal, Louisville, KY; Larry Mata (protesting funding cuts) by Joe Johnston, The Tribune, San Luis Obispo, CA.




Letter to Shareholders |

uccess through adversity—it’s something the ResCare

family deals with routinely. Every day, ResCare
employees and the people we serve overcome the physical,
mental, cultural and economic barriers life has presented
to them.

In 2003, ResCare experienced one of the most adverse
economic climates in its nearly 30-year history. During
the year, we met those challenges and we succeeded. We
improved services, profitability and our balance sheet and
also grew. By any measure, these achievements are
noteworthy. Against the backdrop of economic adversity
and the rate pressures we face, they are exceptional.

It’s no secret how we achieved this level of success. We
have an asset not listed on our balance sheet. We
succeeded because of our 29,000 employees whose work
is more than just a job; it’s a way of life. We cannot thank
them enough for their commitment and sacrifice.

We're pleased with the progress we are making. At the
same time, we remain cautious. During the past 29 years,
we've learned how to be successful in providing the best
services possible while operating during some adverse
economic times. The challenges of the last two years have
tested those skills and ResCare’s employees.

Reimbursement issues at the state level are still challenging.
However, given our longevity and experience, we will
succeed in this environment. We do sense a slowly
improving economy and expect to benefit from it
although there may be some delay because financial
improvement at the state level tends to lag behind the
general economy.

Notwithstanding budget constraints and escalating
operating costs, we have continued to provide exceptional
services. Our Company enjoys an ideal alignment of
incentives: the better we serve the people we support, the
better we serve our shareholders.

arry Mata, who
A dlives at ResCare’s |

Casa de Vida in :
San Luis Obispo, CA, F==%¢

participates in demonstrations to advocate for people
with disabilities by protesting funding cuts.

Highlights
Let me share some events that reflect our progress in 2003:

B Financial and operational performance continued to
be enhanced by the acquisition of ARBOR Education and
Training (ARBOR E&T), which was completed in the
first quarter. This unit provides education and training to
adules with barriers to employment, helping people get off
the welfare rolls, re-educating displaced workers and
finding employment for those long out of work.

B The Division for Training Services was awarded a
one-year $4.7 million contract to continue providing
staffing at three Department of Interior-operated Job
Corps centers in Kentucky, West Virginia and North
Carolina. The contract, which was awarded after a formal
bid process, became effective August 1, 2003, and
contains four one-year renewal options.

B The Division for Training Services has also been
awarded a $32 million contract by the U.S. Department
of Labor to continue operating the Pittsburgh Job Corps
Center in Pennsylvania. The term of the contract is
January 1, 2004, to December 31, 2005, with three one-
year options for renewal. The Pittsburgh center offers
education, job training and placement opportunities to
approximately 850 trainees.

B During the year, an additional 900 people were
added to ResCare’s disabilities services. Most were being
served by struggling providers who were unable to
continue their support. Approximately 700 of those were
as a result of one acquisition, North Carolina-based




At Home Total Care, which was effective September 15.
These acquisitons were not capital intensive and are
consistent with our concentration on organic growth that
blends well with our existing structure.

B Unionized employees in Ohio and West Virginia
voted to ratify a three-year contract with the Company,
ending over two years of working without a contract. We
believe the contract terms are fair for employees and for
the Company.

B The Company closed a

“Make no mistake about it; ResCare is growing.”

M ichael Austin, who lives in a ResCare Florida home, has been
taking riding lessons for over two years at Naples Equestrian
Challenge. He won an award for Most Improved Rider and a trophy
for his participation in the Equestrian Challenge this spring.

first quarter of 2003. We also concentrated on organic
growth through the New Homes Program, which added
330 new homes in the past two years—additions that are
economical and represent an excellent return on our
investment. In 2003, we also completed 15 small
acquisitions of providers whose homes could easily be
“tucked” into our existing operations. These tuck-ins are
inexpensive, add density to existing markets and represent
substantial potential in our system. You can expect us to
be similarly sensible with our shareholders’ investments in
2004.

And, More Growth
On March 10, 2004,
ResCare announced that

$135 million senior credit
facility and completed the early redemption of its 6% .
Convertible Subordinated Notes due December 2004.

Also, some important events took place subsequent to

December 31, 2003:

W The Division for Training Services has renewed its
contract to operate the Treasure Island Job Corps Center
in California. The value of the contract exceeds $38
million and the term is extended to January 31, 2006,
with three one-year renewal options.

B The Division for Training Services was awarded a
new $21.5 million, two-year contract to operate the

Homestead Job Corps Center in Florida.

B Our Division for Persons with Disabilities expanded
its North Carolina operations in January 2004 with the
acquisition of New Horizons, a foster care and in-home
services agency expected to generate annual revenues of
approximately $2 million and also acquired New
Mexico-based Residencial Resorts with annualized
revenue of $1.9 million.

Growth
Make no mistake about it; ResCare is growing. We
completed one notable acquisition, ARBOR E&T, in the

it had entered into an
agreement for a major equity transaction with Onex
Partners LP. Onex Partners will purchase $50.5 million of
ResCare’s Series A convertible preferred shares. The
transaction is expected to close in the second quarter of
2004, subject to shareholder approval.

The preferred shares will be convertible into
approximately 4.8 million ResCare common shares based
upon a $10.50 per share value. Under the terms of the
transaction, Onex Partners will initially be entitled to
appoint three new members to the ResCare Board of
Directors, replacing retiring Board members. Onex
Partners also will purchase 3.7 million shares from the
Company’s founder, James R. Fornear, and two other
insiders. These transactions represent approximately
30% equity interest in the Company.

We intend to use the proceeds from this transaction to
fund ResCare’s growth, which for the past several years
has been intentionally constrained due to limited
availability of capital. Of course, we will continue to
exercise the restraint and fiscal discipline that is a
hallmark of our company as we now consider accretive
growth opportunities. We expect to start benefiting from
this capital infusion in late 2004 and early 2005. The
ResCare team is pleased with this agreement. It will
enable us to more actively consider the various



hemika Carter graduated from Pleasure Ridge Park High
School in Louisville, KY. Ms. Carter received supports through
ResCare’s Community Youth Services and transitioned into an adult

living arrangement upon completion of the program.

opportunities in what we see as an expanding pipeline
with motivated sellers and real value for well-capitalized
buyers. We believe it will benefit all those we serve, as well
as our 29,000 employees whose work is truly a higher
calling,

This is a milestone event for our company. In addition to
the capital the transaction will provide, we consider the
investment by the prestigious Onex Partners as a
compliment of the highest order. Clearly, this investment
in our company conveys a favorable assessment of our
business and a high opinion of our growth strategy. Also,
we look forward to having the valuable counsel of our
new directors.

Moving Forward

Now, let’s talk about our ongoing strategy. Certainly, you
deserve to know what our game plan is going to be for the
future. The short answer is more of the same.

We will continue to add new homes. This strategy
enhances our margins and improves our service offerings.
We hit our goal of opening 163 new homes in 2003 and
plan to add approximately 100 in 2004.

employee turnover and workers compensation claim

Strong Financial Performance

[ am pleased with our financial performance for the past
year. Revenues for the year were $961.3 million, and
earnings were $0.54 per diluted share. Also, we had strong
cash flow for 2003. During the year, we generated $51.5
million in operating cash flow and ended the year with
$23.4 million in cash on hand.

In addition to increasing revenues for 48 consecutive
quarters over the prior year quarter, ResCare has benefited
from a Company-wide effort focusing on intense cost-
control programs. The Company has realized savings on a
number of fronts using “Best Practices.” We reduced

frequency.
Another area of major emphasis and success is receivables
collection. DSOs have been reduced with further

improvement expected in 2004.

We will continue to manage costs

We will work with officials at
the state level to emphasize
the value of our cost-effective
services and the need for
adequate reimbursement for
the care we provide. ResCare

“Clearly, this investment [by Onex
Partners] in our company conveys a
Javorable assessment of our business and
a high opinion of our growth strategy.”

 and exercise intense fiscal
discipline. The impact of that effort
is measurable and is manifested in
our solid financial performance and
strong balance sheet.

We are also pleased to report that

provides qualified personnel,
facilities, systems, financial
resources and infrastructure. We do so economically and
with a sense of purpose and mission that demonstrates our
commitment to the people we serve. We can provide
compelling evidence of the benefits of our services, but we
can also encourage state officials who are familiar with our
services and pleased with our work to deliver that message
to their counterparts. Endorsement by our customers is
the highest commendation.

we substantially improved our
balance sheet and overall financial condition with the new
$135 million senior credit facility, including a $100 million
revolver and a $35 million term loan. This senior credit
facility strengthens ResCare’s balance sheet and better
positions the Company to take full advantage of a gradually
improving economy. We believe the willingness of lenders
to invest in ResCare confirms our business plan and the
strength of our franchise.




A t 18, Wei Zeng came to the United States from China. Now 20, he is studying
culinary arts at the Treasure Island Job Corps Center and working foward
obtaining his high school diploma through the on-site school. Upon completing
the program, he plans to work in the restaurant industry and one day own his
OWR reStaurant.
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“Quality is our Mission environment in 2003 justifies our optimistic outlook.
Some companies only talk about quality; for ResCare it However, we remain cautious and vigilant. We continue
is a way of life. Our quality initiatives are successful to exercise strict fiscal discipline, but we will also evaluate
because we entrust them to our employees and then growth opportunities such as tuck-in acquisitions that
closely monitor the results to give them feedback for complement existing markets and improve organic
improvement. ResCare continues to improve and grow its growth, as well as larger accretive acquisitions which will
Best in Class® quality assurance system, which has proven to be available to us as a result of the increased funding from
be an exceptional quality monitoring and strengthening tool. ~ Onex Partners.

During the year, a number of our operations were also Quality can never be compromised. Experience has
recognized by independent accrediting agencies for taught us how to balance fiscal restraint and operational
outstanding performance in providing quality services for ~ goals. Ultimare decisions must favor the people we serve
people with developmental and other disabilities. and the employees who serve them. We express our

admiration to our 29,000 employees, and we thank our
Optimism investors who share our vision and provide the support
In 2004 there is promise of a gradually improving necessary for us to succeed in this remarkable business.
economy and new opportunities for ResCare. We are We are grateful for the opportunity you have given us to
excited about 2004 because we've established strong, serve these very deserving people.

positive momentum in 2003 that will serve us well. We
not only weathered the adverse rate climate, we succeeded ~ Sincerely,
in spite of it. As things continue to get better, we will too.

We believe that our performance in the tough /@W{ ﬁ g

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
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PART1
Item 1. Business
General

Res-Care, Inc. is a human service company that provides residential, therapeutic and educational support
to people with developmental or other disabilities, to youth with special needs and to adults who are experiencing

barriers to employment. All references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “ResCare,” “our company,” “we,
“us,” or “our” mean Res-Care, Inc. and, unless the context otherwise requires, its consolidated subsidiaries.

Our programs include an array of services provided in both residential and non-residential settings for
adults and youths with mental retardation or other developmental disabilities (MR/DD) and disabilities caused by
acquired brain injury (ABI), and youths who have special educational or support needs, are from disadvantaged
backgrounds, or have severe emotional disorders; including some who have entered the juvenile justice system.
Additionally, since January 2003, we have provided services to welfare recipients, young people and people who
have been laid off or have special barriers to employment, to transition into the workforce and become productive
employees. Because most of our MR/DD consumers require services over their entire lives and many states have
extensive waiting lists for services, our MR/DD operations have experienced high occupancy rates. Occupancy
rates in ABI, youth services and transitional workforce operations are affected by shorter lengths of stay.

At December 31, 2003, we provided services to approximately 33,000 persons with special needs in 32
states, Washington, D.C., Canada and Puerto Rico. At December 31, 2003, we provided services to approximately
19,000 persons with disabilities in community group homes, personal residences and other community-based
programs and in larger facilities, approximately 6,000 disadvantaged youths in federally funded Job Corps
centers, approximately 6,000 welfare recipients, young people and people who have been laid-off or have barriers
to employment, and approximately 2,000 at-risk and troubled youths in juvenile treatment programs and facilities
operated for state and local agencies.

Description of Services by Segment

We have three reportable operating segments: (i) Disabilities Services, (ii) Youth Services and (iii)
Training Services. Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements includes additional information
regarding each of these segments, including the disclosure of required financial information. The information in
Note 9 is incorporated herein by reference and should be read in conjunction with this section.

Disabilities Services

We are the nation’s largest private provider of services for individuals with MR/DD. At December 31,
2003, we served approximately 19,000 individuals in 28 states, Washington, D.C., and Canada. Services are
provided mainly in community-based homes operated by ResCare and in the homes of individuals with MR/DD.
At December 31, 2003, approximately 95% of the disabilities services clients resided in community settings,
either in group homes or in their own or their family’s homes. As of that date, we served approximately 9,000
clients in their family homes. Because most people with MR/DD require services over their entire lives and many
states have extensive waiting lists of people requiring services, we have consistently experienced occupancy rates
of at least 96% since 1996.

We provide the following MR/DD services:

e Periodic In-Home Services. These programs provide customized supports which enable people to live
in or return to their homes. Hourly units of service are provided in response to an individual’s
identified needs and may include personal care, habilitation, respite care, attendant care and
housekeeping. Services are provided for persons with developmental disabilities, physical disabilities,




Alzheimer’s disease and related disorders, spinal cord injuries, acquired brain injury, terminal illness
and other needs.

e  Group Homes. Our typical group homes are family-style houses in the community where four to eight
individuals live together. Well-trained staff provide 24-hour supervision and support. Residents are
encouraged to take responsibility for their home, health and hygiene. They are also encouraged to
actively take part in community functions.

e Supported Living. Our supported living programs provide services tailored to the specific needs of
one, two or three individuals living in a home or an apartment in the community. Individuals may
need only a few hours of support each week, or they may require services 24 hours a day.

® Residential Facilities. Our residential facilities serve 10 or more individuals in campus-style settings.
In these facilities, we strive to create a home-like atmosphere that emphasizes individuality and
choice.

*  Vocational and Day Activity Programs. These programs offer people with developmental disabilities
the opportunity to become active in their communities and/or attain meaningful employment.
Vocational programs contract with local industries to provide short or long-term work. Day activity
programs provide interactive and educational activities and projects for individuals to assist them in
reaching their full potential.

Our programs are based predominantly on individual habilitation plans or individual support plans
designed to encourage greater independence and development of daily living skills through individualized support
and training. We believe that the breadth and quality of our services and support and training programs makes us
attractive to state and local governmental agencies and not-for-profit providers who may wish to contract with us.
Our programs are designed to offer specialized support to these individuals not generally available in larger state
institutions and traditional long-term care facilities. In each of our programs, services are administered by our
employees and contractors, such as qualified mental retardation professionals (QMRPs) or support/service
coordinators, physicians, psychologists, therapists, social workers and other direct support professionals. These
services include social, functional and vocational skills training, supported employment and emotional and
psychological counseling or therapy as needed for each individual.

e Social Skills Training. Social skills training focuses on problem solving, anger management and
adaptive skills to enable persons with disabilities to interact with others in the residential setting and
in their community. We emphasize contact with the community at-large as appropriate for each
individual. The desired outcome is to enable each person to participate in home, family and
community life as fully as possible.

Many individuals with developmental and other disabilities require behavioral intervention services.
We provide these services through psychiatrists, psychologists and behavioral specialists, most of
whom serve as consultants on a contract basis. All operations utilize a non-aversive approach to
behavior management which is designed to avoid consequences involving punishment or extreme
restrictions on individual rights. Whenever possible, the interdisciplinary team and direct support staff
employ behavior management techniques rather than psychotropic medications to modify behavior,
the goal being to minimize the use of medications whenever possible. When indicated, medications
are administered in strict compliance with all applicable regulations.

e Functional Skills Training. Functional skills training encourages mastery of personal skills and the
achievement of greater independence. As needed, individual habilitation or support plans may focus
on basic skills training in such areas as personal hygiene and dressing, as well as more complex
activities such as shopping and use of public transportation. Individuals are encouraged to participate
in daily activities such as housekeeping and meal preparation as appropriate.



o Vocational Skills Training and Day Programs. We provide extensive vocational training or
specialized day programs for many of the people we support. Some individuals are able to be placed
in community-based jobs, either independently or with job coaches, or may participate as a member
of a work team contracted for a specific service such as cleaning, sorting or maintenance. Clients not
working in the community may be served through vocational workshops or day programs appropriate
for their needs. We operate such programs and also contract for these services with outside providers.
Our philosophy is to enable all persons served to perform productive work in the community or
otherwise develop vocational skills based on their individual abilities. People participating in
specialized day programs may have physical or health restrictions which prevent them from being
employed or participating in vocational programs. Specialized day programs may include further
training in daily living skills, community integration or specialized recreation activities.

o Counseling and Therapy Programs. Our counseling and therapy programs address the physical,
emotional and behavioral challenges of individuals with MR/DD or ABI. Goals of the programs
include the development of enhanced physical agility and ambulation, acquisition of adaptive skills
for both personal care and work, as well as the development of coping skills and the use of
alternative, responsible, and socially acceptable interpersonal behaviors. Individualized counseling
programs may include group and individual therapies. Occupational and physical therapies and
therapeutic recreation are provided based on the assessed needs of each person.

At each of our operations, we provide comprehensive individualized support and training programs that
encourage greater independence and the development of personal and vocational skills commensurate with the
particular person’s capabilities. As they progress, new programs are created to encourage greater independence,
self-respect and the development of additional personal, social and/or vocational skills.

Revenues for our Disabilities Services operations are derived primarily from state Medicaid programs and
from management contracts with private operators, generally not-for-profit providers, who contract with state
government agencies and are also reimbursed under the Medicaid program. We also provide respite, therapeutic
and other services on an as-needed basis or hourly basis through our periodic in-home services programs that are
reimbursed on a unit-of-service basis. Reimbursement methods vary by state, and service type, and have
historically been based on a flat-rate system, cost-based reimbursement system, on a per person per diem, or on a
unit-of-service basis. Generally, rates are adjusted annually based upon historical costs experienced by us and by
other service providers, or economic conditions and their impact on state budgets. At facilities and programs
where we are the provider of record, we are directly reimbursed under state Medicaid programs for services we
provide and revenues are affected by occupancy levels. At most facilities and programs that we operate pursuant
to management contracts, the management fee is negotiated with the provider of record. Under certain
management contracts, we are paid a fixed fee regardless of occupancy levels. See Note 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of our revenue recognition policies with respect to
Medicaid contracts. |

Youth Services

Through our Youth Services segment, we operate programs that are designed to address the specific needs
of at-risk and troubled youths to enable each youth to be a more productive member of the community. The young
people targeted to be served range from those who have special educational or support needs, to youths who
exhibit a variety of behavioral and emotional disorders and in some instances have been diagnosed with mental
retardation or other developmental disability, to pre-adjudicated and adjudicated youths who have entered the
juvenile justice system. Special needs and at-risk youth programs operated through our Alternative Youth
Services (AYS) subsidiary include residential treatment programs, the operation of alternative site and private
schools, foster care programs and emergency shelters. Programs offered for troubled youths through our
Youthtrack subsidiary include secure and staff-secure detention programs, long-term treatment programs, secure
transportation, day treatment programs and monitoring, and transition and after-care programs.




Our programs include a variety of educational, behavioral and vocational training, including individual,
group and family counseling and training in social and independent living skills. These programs emphasize self-
esteem, academic achievement, empathy development, critical thinking and problem solving, anger management
and coping strategies, substance abuse treatment and relapse prevention. Programs are designed to: (i) increase
self-control and effective problem-solving; (ii) teach youths how to understand and consider other people’s
values, behaviors and feelings; (iii) show youths how to recognize the effects of their behavior on other people
and why others respond to them as they do; and (iv) enable youths to develop alternative, responsible,
interpersonal behaviors. Although certain youths in our programs require both drug therapy and treatment for use
or abuse of drugs, our goal is to minimize or eliminate the use of medication whenever possible. When
appropriate, medication is prescribed by independent physicians and may be administered by our personnel. We
believe that the breadth of our services and our history of working with youths make us attractive to local, state
and federal governmental agencies.

Most of the Youth Services programs are funded directly by federal, state and local government agencies
including school systems. Under these contracts, we are typically reimbursed based on fixed contract amounts,
flat-rates or cost-based rates.

Training Services

Since 1976, we have been operating programs for disadvantaged youths through the federal Job Corps
program administered by the United States Department of Labor (DOL), which provides for the educational and
vocational skills training, health care, employment counseling and other support necessary to enable
disadvantaged youths to become responsible working adults.

We operate 15 Job Corps centers with a contracted capacity of approximately 6,000 people. The Job
Corps program is designed to address the severe unemployment problem faced by disadvantaged youths
throughout the country and Puerto Rico. The typical Job Corps student is a 16- to 24-year old high school dropout
who reads at the seventh grade level, comes from a disadvantaged background, has not held a regular job, and was
living in an environment characterized by a troubled home life or other disruptive condition. Each center offers
training in several vocational areas depending upon the particular needs and job market opportunities in the
region. Students are required to participate in basic education classes to improve their academic skills and to
complement their vocational training. High school equivalency classes are available to obtain GED certificates.
Upon graduation or other departure from the program, each student is referred to the nearest Job Corps placement
agency for assistance in finding a job or enrolling in a school or training program. Approximately 70% of the
students completing the program have obtained jobs or continued their education elsewhere.

Under Job Corps contracts, we are reimbursed for direct facility and program costs related to Job Corps
center operations, allowable indirect costs for general and administrative costs, plus a predetermined management
fee. The management fee can take the form of a fixed contractual amount or be computed based on certain
performance criteria. All of such amounts are reflected as revenue, and all such direct costs are reflected as
facility and program costs. Final determination of amounts due under Job Corps contracts is subject to audit and
review by the DOL, and renewals and extension of Job Corps contracts are based in part on performance reviews.

We also provide, under separate contracts with the Department of Interior or the primary operator, certain
administrative, counseling, educational, vocational and other support services for several civilian conservation
centers not operated by us. These civilian conservation centers are very similar to Job Corps centers, although
funding for the program is provided through state agencies from the Department of Interior.

In January 2003, we purchased the assets of the Education and Training division of Arbor, Inc. (Arbor
E&T). Arbor E&T operates job training and placement programs that assist disadvantaged job seekers in finding
employment and improving their career prospects. Arbor E&T is funded through performance-based and fixed-fee
contracts from local and state governments and currently operates 30 career centers in eight states. Services
provided include skills assessment, motivation enhancement, counseling, case management, job retention and
career advancement. Additionally, training programs are offered for job readiness, life skills, basic education,
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clerical training and computer skills. Placement programs are also an integral part of the operations, including
work-based training, job development and job matching.

Openrations
Disabilities Services

Disabilities Services operations are organized under six geographic regions for MR/DD services, along
with separate business units for Periodic Services and ABI operations. In general, each cluster of group homes,
supported living program or larger facility is overseen by an executive director. In addition, a program manager
supervises a comprehensive team of professionals and community-based consultants who participate in the design
and implementation of individualized programs for each individual served. QMRPs work with direct service staff
and professionals involved in the programs to ensure that quality standards are met and that progress towards each
individual’s goals and objectives is monitored and outcomes are achieved. Individual habilitation plans are
reviewed and modified by the team as needed. The operations utilize community advisory boards and consumer
satisfaction surveys to solicit input from professionals, family members and advocates, as well as from the
neighboring community, on how to continue to improve service delivery and increase involvement with the
neighborhood or community.

Our direct service staff has the most frequent contact with, and generally are recruited from, the
community in which the facility or program is located. These staff members are screened to meet certain
qualification requirements and receive orientation, training and continuing education.

The provision of disabilities services is subject to complex and substantial state and federal regulations
and we strive to ensure that our internal controls and reporting systems comply with Medicaid and other program
requirements, policies and guidelines. We design and implement programs, often in coordination with appropriate
state agencies, in order to assist the state in meeting its objectives and to facilitate the efficient delivery of quality
services. Under the direction of our Compliance department, management and staff keep current with new laws,
regulations and policy directives affecting the quality and reimbursement of the services provided.

We have developed a model of ongoing program evaluation and quality management which we believe
provides critical feedback to measure the quality of our various operations. Each operation conducts its own
quality assurance program using the ResCare Best in Class (BIC) performance benchmarking system. BIC
performance results are reviewed by management on an on-going basis. Management and operational goals and
objectives are established for each facility and program as part of an annual budget and strategic planning process.
A weekly statistical reporting system and quarterly statement of progress provide management with relevant and
timely information on the operations of each facility. Survey results from governmental agencies for each
operation are recorded in a database and summary reports are reviewed by senior management. We believe the
BIC system is a vital management tool to evaluate the quality of our programs and has been useful as a marketing
tool to promote our programs, since it provides more meaningful information than is usually provided by routine
monitoring by governmental agencies. All Disabilities Services senior staff participate in a performance-based
management system which evalvates individual performance based on critical job function outcomes.
Additionally, we demonstrate our commitment to the professional development of our employees by offering
classes and training programs, as well as tuition reimbursement benefits.

Youth Services

Our youth programs are designed to provide consistent, high quality and cost-effective education and
treatment to address the needs of the various segments of the special needs, at-risk and troubled youth
populations. We generally are responsible for the overall operation of our facilities and programs, including
management, general administration, staff recruitment, security and supervision of the youths in our programs.

We have assembled an experienced team of managers, counselors and staff that blends program expertise
with business and financial experience. We believe that our recruitment, selection and training programs develop
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personnel capable of implementing our systems and procedures. Qur staff includes teachers, counselors, mental
health professionals, juvenile justice administrators and licensed clinicians.

Our internal policies require our teachers, counselors, security and other direct service staff to complete
extensive training. Core training includes courses in the major program components, such as behavior change
education, positive peer culture, nonviolent crisis intervention, discipline and limit-setting, anger management and
social skills training. Continuing education also is required for all staff. We demonstrate our commitment to our
employees’ professional development by offering classes and training programs, as well as tuition reimbursement
benefits. We have also implemented our BIC system at the majority of our youth services programs.

We recognize that, in the operation of programs for at-risk and troubled youths, our primary mission is to
protect the safety of the staff and youths within a facility, as well as the neighboring community. Thus, our
programs emphasize security, risk assessment and close supervision by responsible and well-trained staff.

Training Services

Our Job Corps centers are operated under contract with the DOL, which provides the physical plant and
equipment. We are directly responsible for the management, staffing and administration of Job Corps centers. A
typical ResCare Job Corps operation consists of a three-tier management staff structure. The center director has
the overall responsibility for day-to-day management at each facility and is assisted by several senior staff
managers who typically are responsible for academics, vocational training, social skills, safety and security,
health services and behavior management. Managers are assisted by front line supervisors who have specific
responsibilities for such areas as counseling, food services, maintenance, finance, residential life, recreation,
property, purchasing, human resources and transportation.

An outcome performance measurement report for each center, issued by the DOL monthly, measures two
primary categories of performance: (i) education results, as measured by GED/HSD achievement and/or
vocational completion and attainment of employability skills; and (ii) placement of graduates. These are then
combined into an overall performance rating. Centers are ranked on a 100-point scale by the DOL.. Performance
standards reports are reviewed by management and acted upon as appropriate to address areas where
improvement is needed.

Our Arbor E&T centers are generally operated under contracts with state and county welfare departments,
which are funded through the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The centers are operated in leased
facilities. Center directors have overall responsibility for day-to-day management of the facility and are assisted
by staff members who have specific service responsibilities.

Contracts

State Contracts. We participate under contracts that are regulated by federal and state agencies as a
provider of services in the Medicaid Assistance Program, Title XIX of the Social Security Act (Medicaid).
Although the contracts generally have a stated term of one year and generally may be terminated without cause on
60 days notice, the contracts are typically renewed annually if we have complied with licensing, certification,
program standards and other regulatory requirements. Serious deficiencies can result in delicensure or
decertification actions by these agencies. As provider of record, we contractually obligate ourselves to adhere to
the applicable federal and state regulations regarding the provision of services, the maintenance of records and
submission of claims for reimbursement under Medicaid and pertinent state Medicaid Assistance programs.
Pursuant to provider agreements, we agree to accept the payment received from the government entity as payment
in full for the services administered to the individuals and to provide the government entity with information
regarding the owners and managers of ResCare, as well as to comply with requests and audits of information
pertaining to the services rendered. Provider agreements can be terminated at any time for non-compliance with
the federal, state or local regulations. Reimbursement methods vary by state and service type and can be based on
a flat-rate system, cost-based reimbursement system, on a per person per diem, or on a unit-of-service basis. See
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“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Contracts for our youth services programs, excluding Job Corps, are regulated by state and local
governmental entities. Contracts generally have one-year terms, subject to annual renewal, or cover individuals
for specific terms. The contract rate is also accepted as payment in full for services rendered.

Management Contracts. Management contracts private operators, generally not-for-profit providers who
contract with state agencies, typically require us to manage the day-to-day operations of facilities or programs.
Most of these contracts are long-term (generally two to five years in duration, with several contracts having 30-
year terms) and are subject to renewal or re-negotiation provided that we meet program standards and regulatory
requirements. Except in West Virginia, in which contracts cover individual homes, most management contracts
cover groups of two to 16 facilities. Depending upon the state’s reimbursement policies and practices,
management contract fees are computed on the basis of a fixed fee per individual, which may include some form
of incentive payment, a percentage of operating expenses (cost-plus contracts), a percentage of revenue or an
overall fixed fee paid regardless of occupancy. Our management contracts provide for working capital advances
to the provider of record, subject to the contractual arrangement, Historically, our Medicaid provider contracts and
management contracts have been renewed or satisfactorily renegotiated. We believe our experience in this regard
is consistent with the overall experience of other operators in the Disabilities Services business.

Job Corps Contracts. Contracts for Job Corps centers are awarded pursuant to a rigorous bid process.
After successfully bidding, we operate the Job Corps centers under comprehensive contracts negotiated with the
DOL. Under Job Corps contracts, we are reimbursed for all facility and program costs related to Job Corps center
operations, allowable indirect costs for general and administrative costs, plus a predetermined management fee,
normally a fixed percentage of facility and program costs.

The contracts cover a five-year period, consisting of an initial two-year term with three one-year renewal
terms exercisable at the option of the DOL. The contracts specify that the decision to exercise an option is based
on an assessment of: (i) the performance of the center as compared to its budget; (ii) compliance with federal,
state and local regulations; (iii) qualitative assessments of center life, education, outreach efforts and placement
record; and (iv) the overall rating received by the center. Shortly before the expiration of the five-year contract
period (or earlier if the DOL elects not to exercise a renewal term), the contract is re-bid, regardless of the
operator’s performance. The current operator may participate in the re-bidding process. In situations where the
DOL elects not to exercise a renewal term, however, it is unlikely that the current operator will be successful in
the re-bidding process. It is our experience that there is usually an inverse correlation between the performance
ratings of the current operator and the number of competitors who will participate in the re-bidding process, with
relatively fewer competitors expected where such performance ratings are high.

We operate 15 Job Corps centers under twelve separate contracts with the DOL. Of the five-year periods
covered by our Job Corps contracts, three expire in 2004, five in 2005, one in 2006, one in 2007 and two in 2008.
We intend to selectively pursue additional centers through the Request for Proposals (RFP) process.

We also provide, under separate contracts with the Department of Interior or the primary operator, certain
administrative, counseling, educational, vocational and other support services for several civilian conservation
centers not operated by us.

Arbor E&T Contracts. Contracts for the Arbor E&T centers are awarded pursuant to a bid process. We
are reimbursed for all facility and program costs related to the center operations, allowable indirect costs plus a
management fee. The contracts vary in duration, currently from six months to 24 months. As of December 31,
2003, we operated under approximately 80 contracts.




Marketing and Development

Our marketing activities focus on initiating and maintaining contacts and working relationships with state
and local governments and governmental agencies responsible for the provision of the types of services offered by
us, and identifying other providers who may consider a management contract arrangement or other transaction
with us.

Our Development department directs our marketing efforts for Disabilities Services and Youth Services,
and assists in marketing efforts for Arbor E&T. Responsibility for marketing activities also extends to other
officers of our company and subsidiaries. Marketing activities are reviewed on a regular basis by senior
management.

In our pursuit of government contracts, we contact governments and governmental agencies in
geographical areas in which we operate and in others in which we have identified expansion potential. Contacts
are made and maintained by both regional operations personnel and corporate development personnel, augmented
as appropriate by other senior management. We target new areas based largely on our assessment of the need for
our services, the system of reimbursement, the receptivity to out-of-state and proprietary operators, expected
changes in the service delivery system (i.e., privatization or downsizing), the labor climate and existing
competition.

We also seek to identify service needs or possible changes in the service delivery or reimbursement
system of governmental entities that may be driven by changes in administrative philosophy, budgetary
considerations, pressure or legal actions brought by advocacy groups. As needs or possible changes are identified,
we attempt to work with and provide input to the responsible government personnel and to work with provider
associations and consumer advocacy groups to this end. If an RFP results from this process, we then determine
whether and on what terms we will respond and participate in the competitive process.

With regard to identifying other providers who may be management contract or other transaction
candidates, we attempt to establish relationships with providers through presentations at national and local
conferences, membership in national and local provider associations, direct contact by mail, telephone or personal
visits and follow up with information packets.

In some cases, we may be contacted directly and requested to submit proposals or become a provider in
order to provide services to address specific problems. These problems may include an emergency takeover of a
troubled operation or the need to develop a large number of community placements within a certain time period.
Before taking over these operations, which may be financially and/or operationally troubled, the operations must
meet specific criteria. These criteria include the ability to “tuck-in” the operations into our existing group home
clusters, thereby eliminating general and administrative expenses of the absorbed operations.

Refemal Sources

We receive substantially all of our MR/DD clients from third party referrals. Generally, family members
of persons with MR/DD are made aware of available residential or alternative living arrangements through a state
or local case management system. Case management systems are operated by governmental or private agencies.
Our ABI services receive referrals from doctors, hospitals, private and workers’ compensation insurers and
attorneys. In either case, where it is determined that some form of MR/DD or ABI service is appropriate, a referral
of one or more providers of such services is then made to family members or other interested parties. We
generally receive referrals or placements of individuals to our AYS, Youthtrack and Arbor E&T programs
through state or local agencies or entities responsible for such services. Individuals are recruited to our Job Corps
programs largely through private contractors. We also have contracts directly with the DOL to recruit students to
our own centers. Our reputation and prior experience with agency staff, case workers and others in positions to
make referrals to us are important for building and maintaining census in our operations.



Customers

We are substantially dependent on revenues received under contracts with federal, state and local
government agencies. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we derived 11% of our revenues under contracts for
MR/DD services in Texas and 14% of our revenues under contracts under the federal Job Corps program.
Generally, these contracts are subject to termination at the discretion of governmental agencies and in certain
other circumstances such as failure to comply with applicable regulations or quality of service issues.

Seasonality

Our other youth services programs operating alternative and private schools are subject to seasonality as a
result of school being out of session in parts of the second and third quarters. However, this seasonality does not
have a significant impact on our consolidated results of operations.

Foreign Operations

We operate certain programs under our ABI unit in Canada, which contracts with Canadian governmental
agencies to provide services. The operating results of these programs are not significant to our consolidated
results of operations.

Competition

The provision of Disabilities Services, Youth Services and Training Services is subject to a number of
competitive factors, including range and quality of services provided, cost-effectiveness, reporting and regulatory
expertise, reputation in the community, and the location and appearance of facilities and programs. These markets
are highly fragmented, with no single company or entity holding a dominant market share. We compete with other
for-profit companies, not-for-profit entities and governmental agencies.

With regard to Disabilities Services, individual states remain a provider of MR/DD services, primarily
through the operation of large institutions. Not-for-profit organizations are also active in all states and range from
small agencies serving a limited area with specific programs to multi-state organizations. Many of these
organizations are affiliated with advocacy and sponsoring groups such as community mental health and mental
retardation centers and religious organizations.

The Youth Services business in which we engage is one that other entities may easily enter without
substantial capital investment or experience in management of education or treatment facilities. In addition,
certain not-for-profit entities may offer education and treatment programs at a lower cost than we do in part due to
government subsidies, foundation grants, tax deductible contributions or other financial resources not available to
for-profit companies.

Currently, only a limited number of companies actively seek Job Corps contracts because the bidding
process is highly specialized and technical and requires a significant investment of personnel and other resources
over a period of several months. Approximately one-half of the privately operated centers are operated by the
three largest operators. Competition for Job Corps contracts has increased as the DOL has made efforts to
encourage new participants in the program, particularly small businesses, including minority-owned businesses.

The Arbor E&T business is also one that other entities may enter without substantial capital investment.
The industry is currently served by a small number of large for-profit service providers and several thousand,
largely non-profit providers.

Certain proprietary competitors operate in multiple jurisdictions and may be well capitalized. We also
compete in some markets with smaller local companies that may have a better understanding of the local
conditions and may be better able to gain political and public acceptance. Such competition may adversely affect
our ability to obtain new contracts and complete transactions on favorable terms. We face significant competition
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from all of these providers in the states in which we now operate and expect to face similar competition in any
state that we may enter in the future.

Professional staff retention and development is a critical factor in the successful operation of our business.
The competition for talented professional personnel, such as therapists and QMRPs, is intense. We typically
utilize a standard professional service agreement for provision of services by certain professional personnel,
which is generally terminable on 30 or 60-day notice. The demands of providing the requisite quality of service to
persons with special needs contribute to a high turmover rate of direct service staff leading to increased overtime
and the use of outside consultants and other personnel. Consequently, a high priority is placed on recruiting,
training and retaining competent and caring personnel.

Govemment Regulation and Reimbursement

Our operations are subject to compliance with various federal, state and local statutes and regulations.
Compliance with state licensing requirements is a prerequisite for participation in government-sponsored
assistance programs, such as Medicaid. The following sets forth in greater detail certain regulatory considerations
applicable to us:

Funding Levels. Federal and state funding for our Disabilities Services business is subject to statutory and
regulatory changes, administrative rulings, interpretations of policy, intermediary determinations and
governmental funding restrictions, all of which may materially increase or decrease program reimbursement.
Congress has historically attempted to curb the growth of federal funding of such programs, including limitations
on payments to programs under the Medicaid program. Although states in general have historically increased
rates to compensate for inflationary factors, some have curtailed funding due to state budget deficiencies or other
reasons. In such instances, providers acting through their state trade associations, may attempt to negotiate or
employ legal action in order to reach a compromise settlement. Future revenues may be affected by changes in
rate-setting structures, state budgets, methodologies or interpretations that may be proposed or under
consideration in states where we operate.

Reimbursement Requirements. To qualify for reimbursement under Medicaid programs, facilities and
programs are subject to various requirements of participation and other requirements imposed by federal and state
authorities. In order to maintain a Medicaid or state contract, certain statutory and regulatory requirements must
be met. These participation requirements relate to client rights, quality of services, physical plant and
administration. Long-term providers, like our company, are subject to periodic unannounced inspection by state
authorities, often under contract with the appropriate federal agency, to ensure compliance with the requirements
of participation in the Medicaid or state program.

Licensure. In addition to the requirements to be met by our company for participation in the Medicaid
program, our facilities and programs are usually subject to annual licensing and other regulatory requirements of
state and local authorities. These requirements relate to the condition of the facilities, the quality and adequacy of
personnel and the quality of services. State licensing and other regulatory requirements vary by jurisdiction and
are subject to change and interpretation.

Regulatory Enforcement. From time to time, we receive notices from regulatory inspectors that, in their
opinion, there are deficiencies for failure to comply with various regulatory requirements. We review such notices
and take corrective action as appropriate. In most cases, we and the reviewing agency agree upon the steps to be
taken to address the deficiency, and from time to time, we or one or more of our subsidiaries may enter into
agreements with regulatory agencies requiring us to take certain corrective action in order to maintain licensure.
Serious deficiencies, or failure to comply with any regulatory agreement, may result in the assessment of fines or
penalties and/or decertification or delicensure actions by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services or state
regulatory agencies.
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Restrictions on A cquisitions and A dditions. All states in which we currently operate have adopted laws or
regulations which generally require that a state agency approve us as a provider, and many require a determination
that a need exists prior to the addition of covered persons or services.

Cross Disqualifications and Delicensure. In certain circumstances, conviction of abusive or fraudulent
behavior with respect to one facility or program may subject other facilities and programs under common control
or ownership to disqualification from participation in the Medicaid program. Executive Order 12549 prohibits any
corporation or facility from participating in federal contracts if it or its principals (including but not limited to
officers, directors, owners and key employees) have been debarred, suspended, or declared ineligible, or have
been voluntarily excluded from participating in federal contracts. In addition, some state regulators provide that
all facilities licensed with a state under common ownership or control are subject to delicensure if any one or
more of such facilities are delicensed.

Regulation of Certain Transactions. The Social Security Act, as amended by the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), provides for the mandatory exclusion of providers and
related persons from participation in the Medicaid program if the individual or entity has been convicted of a
criminal offense related to the delivery of an item or service under the Medicaid program or relating to neglect or
abuse of residents. Further, individuals or entities may be, but are not required to be, excluded from the Medicaid
program in circumstances including, but not limited to, the following: convictions relating to fraud; obstruction of
an investigation of a controlled substance; license revocation or suspension; exclusion or suspension from a state
or federal health care program; filing claims for excessive charges or unnecessary services or failure to furnish
medically necessary services; or ownership or control by an individual who has been excluded from the Medicaid
program, against whom a civil monetary penalty related to the Medicaid program has been assessed, or who has
been convicted of a crime described in this paragraph. The illegal remuneration provisions of the Social Security
Act make it a felony to solicit, receive, offer to pay, or pay any kickback, bribe, or rebate in return for referring a
resident for any item or service, or in return for purchasing, leasing or ordering any good, service or item, for
which payment may be made under the Medicaid program. Other provisions in HIPAA proscribe false statements
in billing and in meeting reporting requirements and in representations made with respect to the conditions or
operations of facilities. A violation of the illegal remuneration statute is a felony and may result in the imposition
of criminal penalties, including imprisonment for up to five years and/or a fine of up to $25,000. Further, a civil
action to exclude a provider from the Medicaid program could occur. There are also other civil and criminal
statutes applicable to the industry, such as those governing false billings and the new health care/services offenses
contained in HIPAA, including health care/services fraud, theft or embezzlement, false statements and obstruction
of criminal investigation of offenses. Criminal sanctions for these new health care criminal offenses can be severe.
Sanctions for fraud offense, for example, include imprisonment for up to 20 years. The agencies administering the
Medicaid program have increased their criminal and civil enforcement activity in the prevention of program fraud
and abuse, including the payment of illegal remuneration.

Environmental Laws. Certain federal and state laws govern the handling and disposal of medical,
infectious, and hazardous waste. Failure to comply with those laws or the regulations promulgated under them
could subject an entity covered by these laws to fines, criminal penalties, and other enforcement actions.

OSHA. Federal regulations promulgated by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration impose
additional requirements on us including those protecting employees from exposure to elements such as blood-
borne pathogens. We cannot predict the frequency of compliance, monitoring, or enforcement actions to which we
may be subject as regulations are implemented and there can be no assurance that such regulations will not
adversely affect our operations.

Insurance

We maintain professional and general liability, auto, workers’ compensation and other business insurance
coverages. Our program for professional and general liability coverages provide for a $250,000 deductible per
occurrence and claims limits of $4.8 million per occurrence up to a $6.0 million annual aggregate limit. Property
insurance coverages include a $100,000 deductible per occurrence. Additionally, the program for auto insurance
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provides for a deductible of $250,000 per occurrence and claim limits of $2.0 million per occurrence. We are self-
insured above these limits. Our workers’ compensation coverage provides for a $1.0 million deductible per
occurrence and claims up to statutory limits. All of our business insurance programs are due for renewal July 1,
2004. We believe insurance coverages and self-insurance reserves are adequate for our current operations.
However, there can be no assurance that any potential losses on asserted claims will not exceed such insurance
coverages and self-insurance reserves.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we employed approximately 29,000 employees. As of that date, we were
subject to collective bargaining agreements with approximately 1,200 of our employees. We have not experienced
any work stoppages and believe we have good relations with our employees.

During 2003, union employees in Ohio and West Virginia voted to ratify a three-year contract with our
company, ending more than two years of working without a contract. We believe the contract terms are fair for
employees and for our company.

i

j&vailable Information

ResCare files annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and amendments to those reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These reports are
available at the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. Our reports will also be available on our website at
http://www.rescare.com as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or
furnished to the SEC. You may also obtain electronic or paper copies of our SEC reports free of charge by
contacting our Communications department, 10140 Linn Station Road, Louisville, Kentucky 40223, (telephone)
502-394-2100 or communications @rescare.com.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2003, we owned approximately 90 properties and operated facilities and programs at
approximately 1,400 leased properties. Other facilities and programs are operated under management contracts.
We believe that our properties are adequate and suitable for our business as presently conducted.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we, or a provider with whom we have a management agreement, may become a party
to legal and/or administrative proceedings involving state program administrators and others that, in the event of
unfavorable outcomes, may adversely affect revenues, earnings, and period to period comparisons.

In July 2000, American International Specialty Lines Insurance Company, or AISL, filed a Complaint for
Declaratory Judgment against us and certain of our subsidiaries in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District
of Texas, Houston Division. In the Complaint, AISL sought a declaration of what insurance coverage was
available to ResCare in the case styled In re: Estate of Trenia Wright, Deceased, et al. v. Res-Care, Inc., et dl.,
which was filed in Probate Court No. 1 of Harris County, Texas (the Lawsuit). After the filing, we entered into an
agreement with AISL whereby any settlement reached in the Lawsuit would not be dispositive of whether the
claims in the Lawsuit were covered under the insurance policies issued by AISL. AISL thereafter settled the
Lawsuit for $9 million. It is our position that: (i) the Lawsuit initiated coverage under policies of insurance in
more than one policy year, thus affording adequate coverage to settle the Lawsuit within coverage and policy
limits, (ii) AISL waived any applicable exclusions for punitive damages by its failure to send a timely reservation
of rights letter and (iii) the decision by the Texas Supreme Court in King v. Dallas Fire Insurance Company, 85
S.W.3d 185 (Tex. 2002) controls. Prior to the Texas Supreme Court’s decision in the King case, summary
judgment was granted in favor of AISL but the scope of the order was unclear. Based on the King decision, the
summary judgment was set aside. Thereafter subsequent motions for summary judgment filed by both AISL and
ResCare were denied. The case was tried, without a jury, in late December 2003. No decision has been received
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from the Court. We have not made any provision in our consolidated financial statements for any potential
liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter, as we do not believe it is probable that an
unfavorable outcome will result from this matter. Based on the advice of counsel, we do not believe it is probable
that the ultimate resolution of this matter will result in a material liability to us nor have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

On September 2, 2001, in a case styled Nellie Lake, Individually as an Heir-at-Law of Christina Zellner,
deceased; and as Personal Representative of the Estate of Christina Zellner v. Res-Care, Inc., et al., in the U.S.
District Court of the District of Kansas at Wichita, a jury awarded noneconomic damages to Ms. Lake in the
amount of $100,000, the statutory maximum, as well as $5,000 for economic loss. In addition, the jury awarded
the Estate of Christina Zellner $5,000 of noneconomic damages and issued an advisory opinion recommending an
award of $2.5 million in punitive damages. The judge, however, was not required to award the amount of punitive
damages recommended by the jury and on February 4, 2002, entered a punitive damage judgment in the amount
of $1 million. Based on the advice of counsel, we appealed the award of punitive damages, based on numerous
appealable errors at trial and have since settled the case, without any contribution from AISL, for approximately
$750,000. Prior to settlement, in July 2002 we filed a Declaratory Judgment action against AISL in the United
States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky, Louisville Division, alleging that the policy should be
interpreted under Kentucky law, thus affording us coverage. We have since sought leave of court to amend our
complaint for breach of contract, bad faith insurance practices, as well as unfair claims practices under applicable
Kentucky statutes. In addition, ResCare has filed a motion for judgment on the pleadings in regard to its
declaration of rights action. In the interim, AISL filed a motion to transfer this action to the District of Kansas
which was granted. ResCare has filed a writ of mandamus with the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals asking that the
Western District of Kentucky be required to retain jurisdiction. Based on the advice of counsel, we believe any
damages resulting from this matter are covered by insurance and, accordingly, we have not made any provision in
our consolidated financial statements for any potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this
matter. Further, we believe that recovery of the settlement is probable and, therefore we do not believe that the
ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition,
results of operations or liquidity.

In September 1997, a lawsuit, styled Nancy Chesser v. Normal Life of Texas, Inc., and Normal Life, Inc.
District Court of Travis County, Texas was filed against a Texas facility operated by the former owners of Normal
Life, Inc. and Normal Life of North Texas, Inc., one of our subsidiaries, asserting causes of action for negligence,
intentional infliction of emotional distress and retaliation regarding the discharge of residents of the facility. In
May 2000, a judgment was entered in favor of the plaintiff awarding the plaintiff damages, prejudgment interest
and attorneys’ fees totaling $4.8 million. In October 2000, ResCare and AISL entered into an agreement whereby
any settlement reached in Chesser and a related lawsuit also filed in the District Court of Travis County, Texas
would not be dispositive of whether the claims in those suits were covered under the policies issued by AISL.
AISL thereafter settled the suits and in October 2000 filed a Complaint for Declaratory Judgment against Normal
Life of North Texas, Inc. and Normal Life, Inc. in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas,
Dallas Division. In the Complaint, AISL seeks a declaration of what insurance coverage is available to ResCare in
the lawsuits. It is our position that the lawsuits initiated coverage under the primary policies of insurance, thus
affording adequate coverage to settle the lawsuits within coverage and policy limits. The trial of this declaratory
judgment action previously scheduled to occur in March 2002 and December 2002 has been postponed with no
new trial date set. The parties are currently in settlement discussions and we have established a reserve in our
consolidated financial statements for any potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter.
Based on the advice of counsel, we do not believe it is probable that the ultimate resolution of this matter will
result in an additional material liability to us nor have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In December 1999, a lawsuit styled James Michael Godfrey and Sherry Jo Lusk v. Res-Care, Inc., was
filed in Superior Court of Catawba County, North Carolina, by the former owners of Access, Inc., one of our
subsidiaries, claiming fraud and unfair and deceptive trade practices. On July 29, 2002, a judgment was entered in
favor of the plaintiff awarding the plaintiff damages of $990,000 with interest of $330,000 from December 1,
1999. Based on the advice of counsel, we have appealed the award of damages, based on numerous appealable
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errors at trial. The case has been briefed to the North Carolina Court of Appeals and scheduled for oral argument
on March 29, 2004. In our opinion, after consulting with outside counsel, substantial grounds exist for a
successful appeal. We have not made any provision in our consolidated financial statements for any potential
liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter. Based on the advice of counsel, we do not believe it
is probable that the ultimate resolution of this matter will result in a material liability to us nor have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

On June 21, 2002, we were notified that our mental health services subsidiary was the subject of an
investigation concerning allegations relating to services provided by the subsidiary under various programs
sponsored by Medicaid. The subsidiary under investigation is a non-core operation that provides skills training to
persons with severe mental illness in Texas. The mental health operation was managed by its founders under a
management contract until September 30, 2003 and represents less than 0.5% of the total revenues of the
Disabilities Services division. During the third quarter of 2002, we received a Civil Investigative Demand from
the Texas Attorney General (TAG) requesting the production of a variety of documents relating to the subsidiary.
The aforementioned investigation was a result of a Civil False Claims Act lawsuit filed under seal by a former
employee of the subsidiary on June 18, 2001, on behalf of the employee, the United States Government and the
State of Texas. The lawsuit, styled United States of America and State of Texas, ex rel. Jennifer Hudnall vs. The
Citadel Group, Inc., et al. was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas
Division. On June 21, 2002, the seal was partially lifted for the sole purpose of informing us of the lawsuit. In
March 2003, the Texas Attorney General intervened in the case and in May 2003, filed under seal, a separate
complaint. In July 2003, the U.S. Department of Justice notified us that they were not intervening in the case but
would remain a real party in interest. On November 6, 2003, the U.S. District Court lifted the seal, thus making
the lawsuit public. We have cooperated with the TAG in providing requested documents and engaged special
counsel to conduct an internal investigation of the allegations. Based on the results of our investigation, we
believe that the subsidiary has complied with the applicable rules and regulations governing the provision of
mental health services in the State of Texas. Although we cannot predict the outcome of the lawsuit with
certainty, and we have incurred and could continue to incur significant legal expenses in connection with
document production and our response, we do not believe the ultimate resolution of the lawsuit will have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In July 2002, Lexington Insurance Company (Lexington) filed a Complaint for Declaratory Action
against one of our subsidiaries, EduCare Community Living Corporation — Gulf Coast, in the U.S. District Court
for the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. In the Complaint, Lexington sought a declaration of what
insurance coverage was available in the case styled William Thurber and Kathy Thurber, et al v. EduCare
Community Living Corporation — Gulf Coast (EduCare), which was filed in the 23™ Judicial District Court of
Brazoria County, Texas. After the filing, we entered into an agreement with Lexington whereby any settlement
reached in Thurber would not be dispositive of whether the claims were covered by insurance. Lexington and
EduCare thereafter contributed $1.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively, and settled the Thurber lawsuit. In the
declaratory judgment action, Lexington contends that the $1.0 million previously paid satisfies all coverage
obligations. Both EduCare and Lexington filed motions for summary judgment which are currently pending
before the Court. After consulting with outside counsel, we expect $1.0 million of our contribution to the
settlement to be reimbursed by Lexington under the primary policy. We established a reserve in the consolidated
financial statements for any potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter. Further, we
believe that recovery of $1.0 million of the settlement is probable and, therefore, we do not believe that the
ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition,
results of operations or liquidity.

In August 1998, with the approval of the State of Indiana, we relocated approximately 100 individuals
from three of our larger facilities to community-based settings. In June 1999, in a lawsuit styled Omega
Healthcare Investors, Inc. v. Res-Care Health Services, Inc., the lessor of these facilities filed suit against us in
U.S. District Court, Southern District of Indiana, alleging in connection therewith breach of contract, conversion
and fraudulent concealment. In January 2001, January 2002 and July 2002, Omega filed amended complaints
alleging wrongful conduct in the appraisal process for the 1999 purchase of three other facilities located in
Indiana, for conversion of the Medicaid certifications of the 1998 Indiana facilities and a facility in Kentucky that
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downsized in 1999, and for breach of contract in allowing the Kentucky facility to be closed. The parties had filed
various motions for partial summary judgment. The Court has now denied Omega’s motion seeking summary
judgment on breach of contract on the termination of the three Indiana facility leases in 1998, the Kentucky lease
termination and the 1999 purchase of three facilities in Indiana. In addition, the Court has granted ResCare’s
motion on the “unjust enrichment” and “conversion” of the Medicaid certifications, as well as the lease
termination of the Kentucky facility. A trial date of February 2004 was cancelled and no new date has been
assigned. On the advice of counsel, we believe that the amount of damages being sought by the plaintiffs is now
approximately $9.4 million. We believe that this lawsuit is without merit and will defend it vigorously. We do not
believe it is probable that the ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In February 2002, a lawsuit previously filed in Texas State Court styled PosA bilities, Inc. v. EduCare
Community Living Corporation — America, Inc. and Res-Care, Inc. was removed to the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas. In this action, PosAbilities alleges breach of contract, breach of fiduciary
duty, fraud and conversion in the performance of administrative services by EduCare and seeks actual damages in
excess of $1,000,000 along with unspecified punitive damages and attorney fees. We have filed a counterclaim
that proper accounting demonstrates that a substantial liability is owed to EduCare from PosAbilities, and
accordingly, at the trial scheduled for March 2004, we will seek to recover from PosAbilities a net amount of
approximately $700,000. We have not made any provision in our consolidated financial statements for any
potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter. Based on the advice of counsel, we do not
believe it is probable that ultimate resolution of this matter will result in a liability to us nor have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In addition, we are a party to various other legal and/or administrative proceedings arising out of the
operation of our facilities and programs and arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe that, generally,
these claims are without merit. Further, many of such claims may be covered by insurance. We do not believe the
results of these proceedings or claims, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART II

Item S. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock began trading on the NASDAQ National Market on December 15, 1992, under the
symbol “RSCR”. As of February 29, 2004, we had approximately 3,900 shareholders based on the number of
holders of record and an estimate of the number of individual participants represented by security position
listings.

The following table sets forth the reported high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported by
NASDAQ.

2003 2002
Quarter Ended High Low High Low
March 31 3.82 2.50 9.60 6.80
Tune 30 ‘ 5.05 2.91 8.95 5.00
September 30 8.75 4.05 6.75 4.72
December 31 9.11 7.00 5.05 2.35

We currently do not pay dividends and do not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
Statements and related notes.

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data ©;
REVENUES ..o $ 961,333 $919,724 §$ 885,715 $ 858,073 $ 816,867
Operating income V) ........c..ooooevevieereeeee e 45,243 28,480 12,773 47,382 38,639
Income (loss) from continuing operations.................. 13,387 2,676 (4,372) 14,176 9,736
Net income (1088) @....vvevieeeeeeeeeeeee e 13,387 2,676 4,372) 14,176 6,338
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

From continuing Operations ................ccouecrrreerrncn. $ 055 $ 011 $ (0.18) $ 058 $ 0.40

Net inCOme (10SS) .vveevvrieereeeiiiiiiieieeeeeevireeteeeeneeens 0.55 0.11 (0.18) 0.58 0.26
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

From continuing operations ..........c.covevcverenreneenen 0.54 0.11 (0.18) 0.58 0.39

Net income (I0SS) ..vvevvvevieiieecieenriineenrveevesreese e 0.54 0.11 (0.18) 0.58 0.25
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortization ................cceeeevvecerennnes $ 12254 $ 11,862 $ 21,079 $ 22,308 $ 21,107
Facility 160t ..ot 35362 32212 29,792 25,136 25,799
Selected Historical Ratios: ¥
Percentage of total debt to total capitalization............ 49.7% 59.7% 60.8% 60.5% 64.1%
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges..............ccccocvvvvenee. 1.6x 1.1x 0.8x 1.8x 1.7x
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital .......c.ooooevieveiveeieriiiiesee e $ 71,298 §$ 144,546 §$ 142,877 $ 122,305 $ 102,141
TOtAl ASSELS ....ceeeivrierir ittt e ettt eer e eeevesesbeens 503,026 546,612 534,936 536,771 523,131
Long-term obligations ...........cccccvvveineinrnceiniceiens 184,576 261,123 268,014 269,164 285,039
Total debt, including capital leases ..............ccccveeennee 189,685 262,424 269,711 272,277 291,713
Shareholders’ equity.........ccocoevereeririeniesrreeneesrenes 192,291 177,179 174,129 178,123 163,384
Operating Data:
Persons served:

Disabilities SErvices.......occoevvvmviviiiieerceereeeeeeneenns 19 20 18 17 16

Youth SErviCes .cvveiiiiiiiiciiiie e 2 2 2 2 2

Training Services .....cccccveiervvnnieiirieeecveer e snseenns 12 7 7 7 6

Total 33 29 27 26 24

@ QOperating income for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes a charge of $2.2 million ($1.4 million net of tax, or $0.06 per share) related to debt
refinancing ($2.5 million, pre-tax charge) and extinguishment of debt ($0.3 million, pre-tax gain). Operating income for the year ended December 31,
2002 includes a charge of $14.8 million ($9.5 million net of tax, or $0.39 per share) related to write-off of accounts receivable in the fourth quarter. In
addition, we recorded a charge of $1.5 million ($1.0 million net of tax, or $0.04 per share) for costs associated with an investigation and closure of a
portion of a non-core operation. Further, operating income for 2002 includes gains on the extinguishment of debt of $1.3 million ($0.8 million net of tax,
or $0.03 per share). Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes a restructuring charge of approximately $1.6 million ($0.9 million
net of tax, or $0.04 per share) for costs associated with the exit from Tennessee. In addition, we recorded a charge of $22.0 million ($13.2 million net of
tax, or $0.54 per share) related to additional reserves for accounts receivable and insurance claims. Operating income for the year ended December 31,
2000 includes the following: (1) a charge of $1.8 million ($1.1 million net of tax, or $0.04 per share) related to the write-off of costs associated with the
terminated management-led buyout, (2) a charge of $1.7 million ($1.0 million net of tax, or $0.04 per share) related to our 2000 restructuring plan and (3)
a charge of $0.6 million for the settlement of a lawsuit. Operating income for 1999 includes the following: (1) an additional reserve for doubtful accounts
of $8.0 million, (2) a charge of $2.5 million related to higher medical claims costs and (3) a charge of $20.5 million ($13.7 million net of tax, or $0.55 per
share) recorded in connection with the PeopleServe merger.

2

Net income for 1999 includes a charge of $3.9 million (30.16 per share) for the cumulative effect of the adoption of Statement of Position 98-5, Reporting
on the Costs of Start-up A ctivities, effective January 1, 1999. Net income also includes a gain recognized on the sale of a discontinued operation of $0.5
million in 1999 ($0.02 per share).

[€)

Facility rent is defined as land and building lease expense less amortization of any deferred gain on applicable lease transactions.

4

For the purpose of determining the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings are defined as income before income taxes, plus fixed charges. Fixed
charges consist of interest expense on all indebtedness and amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs and an estimate of interest within rental
expense.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is intended to help the reader
understand ResCare. MD&A is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our
Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying notes. This overview provides our perspective on the
individual sections of MD&A. MD&A includes the following sections:

e  Our Business - a general description of our business and the services we provide.

e Application of Cntical Accounting Policies - a discussion of accounting policies that require critical
judgments and estimates.

e Recent Developments - a discussion of material events subsequent to December 31, 2003,
e Yearin Review - highlights of the past year.

o  Results of Operations - an analysis of our consolidated results of operations for the three years presented
including analysis of our operating segments.

e Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources - an analysis of cash flows, sources and uses of cash
and financial position.

o Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements - a tabular presentation of
our contractual obligations and commitments for future periods and disclosure of off-balance sheet
transactions and interests.

o Impact of Recently Issued A ccounting Standards

e Cerain Risk Factors - a discussion of various factors and forces that may impact future performance and
results.

e Forward-Looking Statements - cautionary information about forward-looking statements and a
description of certain risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from
historical results or our current expectations or projections.

Our Business

We receive revenues primarily from the delivery of residential, training, educational and support services
to various populations with special needs. We have three reportable operating segments: (i) Disabilities Services;
(i1) Youth Services and (iii) Training Services. Management’s discussion and analysis of each segment is included
below. Further information regarding each of these segments, including the disclosure of required segment
financial information, is included in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenues for our Disabilities Services operations are derived primarily from state Medicaid programs and
from management contracts with private operators, generally not-for-profit providers, who contract with state
government agencies and are also reimbursed under the Medicaid program. We also provide respite, therapeutic
and other services on an as-needed basis or hourly basis through our periodic in-home services programs that are
reimbursed on a unit-of-service basis. Reimbursement varies by state and service type, and may be based on a
variety of methods including flat-rate, cost-based reimbursement, per person per diem, or unit-of-service.
Generally, rates are adjusted annually based upon historical costs experienced by us and by other service
providers, or economic conditions and their impact on state budgets. At facilities and programs where we are the
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provider of record, we are directly reimbursed under state Medicaid programs for services we provide and such
revenues are affected by occupancy levels. At most facilities and programs that we operate pursuant to
management contracts, the management fee is negotiated with the provider of record.

We operate programs for at-risk and troubled youths through our AYS and Youthtrack subsidiaries. Most
of the Youth Services programs are funded directly by federal, state and local government agencies including
school systems. Under these contracts, we are typically reimbursed based on fixed contract amounts, flat-rates or
cost-based rates.

We operate 15 vocational training centers under the federal Job Corps program administered by the DOL.
Under Job Corps contracts, we are reimbursed for direct facility and program costs related to Job Corps center
operations, allowable indirect costs for general and administrative costs, plus a predetermined management fee.
The management fee can take the form of a fixed contractual amount or be computed based on certain
performance criteria. All of such amounts are reflected as revenue, and all such direct costs are reflected as
facility and program costs. Final determination of amounts due under Job Corps contracts is subject to audit and
review by the DOL, and renewals and extension of Job Corps contracts are based in part on performance reviews.

In January 2003, we purchased the assets of Arbor E&T. Arbor E&T operates job training and placement
programs that assist disadvantaged job seekers in finding employment and improving their career prospects.
Funded through approximately 80 performance-based or fixed-fee contracts from local and state governments,
Arbor E&T employs more than 375 staff, including counselors, trainers, career advisors, and job developers.
Based in Media, Pennsylvania, Arbor E&T operates 30 career centers in California, Georgia, New Jersey, New
York, Pennsylvania, Virginia, Washington and West Virginia.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires the use
of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts and related disclosures of commitments and
contingencies. We rely on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances to make judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting policies involve the more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements. Management has discussed the
development, selection, and application of our critical accounting policies with our Audit Committee.

Valuation of A ccounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from Medicaid programs, other government
agencies and commercial insurance companies. An estimated allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is
recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a particular account will not be collected. In evaluating
the collectibility of accounts receivable, we consider a number of factors, including historical loss rates, age of the
accounts, changes in collection patterns, the status of ongoing disputes with third-party payors, general economic
conditions and the status of state budgets. Complex rules and regulations regarding billing and timely filing
requirements in various states are also a factor in our assessment of the collectibility of accounts receivable.
Actual collections of accounts receivable in subsequent periods may require changes in the estimated allowance
for doubtful accounts. Changes in these estimates are charged or credited to the results of operations in the period
of the change of estimate.
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Reserves for Insurance Risks

We self-insure a substantial portion of our professional and general liability, workers’ compensation and
health benefit risks. Provisions for losses for these risks are based upon actuarially determined estimates. The
allowances for these risks include an amount determined from reported claims and an amount based on past
experiences for losses incurred but not reported. Estimates of workers’ compensation claims reserves are
discounted using a discount rate of 6% and 8% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in the
discount rate between years is attributable to the overall decrease in treasury rates. An increase or decrease in the
discount rate of 100 basis points would change the reserve, and resulting expense, by $0.5 million. These
liabilities are necessarily based on estimates and, while we believe that the provision for loss is adequate, the
ultimate liability may be more or less than the amounts recorded. The liabilities are reviewed quarterly and any
adjustments are reflected in earnings in the period known.

Legal Contingencies

We are party to numerous claims and lawsuits with respect to various matters. The material legal
proceedings in which ResCare is currently involved are described in Item 3 of this report and Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We provide for costs related to contingencies when a loss is probable and the
amount is reasonably determinable. We confer with outside counsel in estimating our potential liability for certain
legal contingencies. While we believe our provision for legal contingencies is adequate, the outcome of legal
proceedings is difficult to predict and we may settle legal claims or be subject to judgments for amounts that
exceed our estimates.

Valuation of Long-Lived A ssets

We regularly review the carrying value of long-lived assets with respect to any events or circumstances
that indicate a possible inability to recover their carrying amount. Indicators of impairment include, but are not
limited to, loss of contracts, significant census declines, reductions in reimbursement levels and significant
litigation. Our evaluation is based on cash flow, profitability and projections that incorporate current or projected
operating results, as well as significant events or changes in the environment. If circumstances suggest the
recorded amounts cannot be recovered, the carrying values of such assets are reduced to fair value based upon
various techniques to estimate fair value.

Goodwill

With respect to businesses we have acquired, we evaluate the costs of purchased businesses in excess of
net assets acquired (goodwill) for impairment at least annually, unless significant changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment may have occurred sooner. We are required to test goodwill on a reporting unit
basis. A reporting unit is the operating segment unless, for businesses within that operating segment, discrete
financial information is prepared and regularly reviewed by management, in which case such a component
business is the reporting unit. We use a fair value approach to test goodwill for impairment and recognize an
impairment charge for the amount, if any, by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implicit fair
value. Fair values are established using a weighted average of discounted cash flows and comparative market
multiples in the current market conditions.

Discounted cash flow computations depend on a number of factors including estimates of future market
growth and trends, forecasted revenue and costs, expected periods the assets will be utilized, appropriate discount
rates and other variables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but which
are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those estimates. The discount
rate used as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 8.6% and 7.0%, respectively. A variance in the discount rate
could have a significant impact on the impairment analysis. For example, a 1% increase in the discount rate would
decrease the fair value of the reporting unit by $16 million, $1 million and $3 million for the Disabilities, Youth
and Training Services reporting units, respectively, whereas a 1% decrease in the discount rate would increase the
fair value by $24 million, $1 million and $5 million, respectively. In addition, we make certain judgments about
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the selection of comparable companies used in determining market multiples in valuing our reporting units, as
well as certain assumptions to allocate shared assets and liabilities to calculate values for each of our reporting
units.

Revenue Recognition

Disabilities Services. Revenues are derived primarily from state Medicaid programs and from
management contracts with private operators, generally not-for-profit providers, who contract with state agencies
and are also reimbursed under the Medicaid programs. Revenues are recorded at rates established at or before the
time services are rendered. Revenue is recognized in the period services are rendered.

Youth Services. Juvenile treatment revenues are derived primarily from contracts with state agencies
under various reimbursement systems. Reimbursement from state or locally awarded contracts varies per facility
or program, and is typically paid under fixed contract amounts, flat rates, or cost-based rates. Revenue is
recognized in the period services are rendered.

Training Services. Revenues include amounts reimbursable under cost reimbursement contracts with the
DOL for operating Job Corps centers and with local and state governments for Arbor E&T. The contracts provide
reimbursement for all facility and program costs related to operations, allowable indirect costs for general and
administrative costs, plus a predetermined management fee, normally a fixed percentage of facility and program
costs. For certain of our current contracts and any contract renewals, the management fee is a combination of
fixed and performance-based. Final determination of amounts due under the contracts is subject to audit and
review by the applicable government agencies. Revenue is recognized in the period associated costs are incurred.

Laws and regulations governing the government programs and contracts are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term. For each operating segment, expenses are subject to examination by agencies
administering the contracts and services. We believe that adequate provisions have been made for potential
adjustments arising from such examinations.

Recent Developments

On March 10, 2004, we announced that Onex Partners LP has agreed to purchase $50.5 million of newly
issued convertible preferred stock. We plan to use the proceeds to fund future growth opportunities. The
transaction is expected to close in the third quarter of 2004, subject to regulatory and shareholder approvals, as
may be determined. In a related transaction, Onex Partners also agreed to purchase 3.7 million common shares
from our company’s founder, James R. Fomear, and two other insiders upon the closing of preferred stock sale.
As a result of these transactions, Onex Partners would hold approximately 30% of the voting rights of our
company.

The preferred shares will be convertible into approximately 4.8 million shares of ResCare common stock
based upon a $10.50 value per common share. The preferred shares will have voting rights based upon the initial
conversion ratio. Under the terms of the transaction, Onex Partners will have the ongoing right to elect two Onex
representatives to our nine member Board of Directors and the right also to appoint two additional independent
directors to vacancies on the Board. The four new directors will replace four retiring Board members.

Onex Partners LP is controlled by Onex Corporation, a diversified company with annual consolidated

revenues of approximately $14 billion and consolidated assets of approximately $12 billion. Onex shares trade on
the Toronto Stock Exchange under the stock symbol OCX.
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Yearin Review

Despite challenging budgetary issues at the state level, during 2003 we improved services, profitability
and our balance sheet, and also added 166 new homes. We continued to manage costs and exercise fiscal
discipline. Revenues for the year were $961.3 million and net income was $13.4 million, or $0.54 per diluted
share. These items are discussed in more detail in the following sections of the MD&A.

The following highlights some of the events of the past year that reflect our progress:

On December 31, 2003, we completed an agreement for a $135 million senior secured credit facility
and the redemption of our 6% convertible subordinated notes due December 2004. This senior credit
facility replaces the previously held $80 million credit facility. The new credit facility includes a $100
million revolver and a $35 million term loan and is due in January 2008. The revolver has a $65
million sub-limit for letters of credit. The new credit facility is subject to certain covenants including
maintaining certain leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios.

As discussed above, in December 2003, we formally issued the notice to call the 6% convertible
subordinated notes, all of which were redeemed by the trustee on January 12, 2004. We funded the
redemption and were relieved as primary obligor on December 31, 2003, with $22 million from the

~ term loan, and the remainder from cash on hand. We recorded a pre-tax charge of $2.5 million, or

$0.07 per share, in the fourth quarter of 2003 related to the refinancing of the credit facility and
redemption of the 6% convertible subordinated notes, including the write-off of unamortized debt
issuance costs, premiums paid to noteholders for early redemption, and costs of a related consent
solicitation.

Our operational performance continues to be enhanced by the acquisition of Arbor E&T, which we
completed in the first quarter. This business generated approximately $30 million in revenues in
2003.

The 166 new homes added during 2003 generated revenues for 2003 of approximately $12.7 million.
The new homes opened in 2002 added approximately $20.7 million of revenue in 2003.

Training Services was awarded a $32 million contract by the U.S. Department of Labor to continue
operating the Pittsburgh Job Corps Center in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. The term of the contract is
January 1, 2004, to December 31, 2005, with three one-year options for renewal.

Training Services was awarded a new contract to operate the Tulsa Job Corps center in Tulsa,
Oklahoma effective June 1, 2003. Annual revenue from this center is expected to be $7 million.

Our contract at the Earle C. Clements Job Corps center in Morganfield, Kentucky expired on April
30, 2003 and was awarded to another contractor. Annual revenues related to this contract were $28
million.

During the year, an additional 900 people were added to ResCare’s disabilities services, most of
whom were previously served by financially distressed providers who were unable to continue their
support. These 15 tuck-in acquisitions represent approximately $11 million in annualized revenues.

Union employees in Ohio and West Virginia voted to ratify a three-year contract with our company,

ending more than two years of working without a contract. We believe the contract terms are fair for
employees and for our company.
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e Although the outcome of the state budgetary process is difficult to predict, we expect reimbursement
rates for 2004 to remain consistent with 2003 rates versus an overall rate decrease in 2003 of

approximately 0.3% from 2002 levels.

o  Workers’ compensation rates increased approximately 15% in 2003 over 2002 on our annual renewal

date of July 1.
Results of Operations

Revenues:

DisSabIlIties SEIVICES .. vuiiiiirieiieriiiaiiiireie e e esbreeserre e esrarressbbee e saresssarneesas
Y OULH SEIVICES .eiiiiiiiiieccriee ettt e et e e vt e e err e e eetberessaaraeseeens
Training SEIVICES .....ccvieiciiiiiirciirnrire e e
CONSOLAALED .v..coovveeeieriececiree e ercetr e e vt e s et r e s srr e e s saree e s breessanreanes
Labor Cost as % of Revenue:
DiSabIlItIES SEIVICES....iuevevieiiiiiiriiiieee e ee s essrrereseeesaarsessstreatbaressseees
YOULR SEIVICES ..ottt eeete et s et s et st e e eee st eseertoresmeoseneeenana
TraINING SEIVICES .evivieerriiicieriieniries et senn et s et e snere e
CONSOIAALE ....vvireieiirriieeeeivir e eebbb e e e e etbrr e e e seesnanereteessestasn

Operating Income:

Disabilities SEIVICES...cccvierireriirriririsreireiereeieseereeseestreesrrineeenbesessaeenrenaes
YOULh SEIVICES ...ocuviiiiitiiii ettt sttt et es s seaeeaneerane
TrainIng SEIVICES ...oirviiiiiiiiireiiieie ettt
Corporate and Other.........ccoceeveeennne eteeee et b e et et e e sheara et s bt aenan
ConSOLIALEd .....cccevreieriiiiii et e e bbbt an

Operating Margin:

DiSaADIIIES SEIVICES ..eciiiveriieeeeeiierieerrete e e e s b reetesstareesseesassraeaseessannsrenenns
Y OULN SOIVICES .uviiiieiiiiieei et ce ettt et e e e ee et re e e e e e e s ess e s et taaaeeeeeans
TTANING SEIVICES ...uiovieieiiriiieere ettt a e rae b vt r s see b enees
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Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 740,305 $ 717,335 $ 690,187
52,120 55,975 58,874
168908 _ 146,414 _ 136.654

$961,333 $919724 $ 885,715

63.1% 63.6% 63.1%
59.6% 59.7% 58.6%
52.1% 51.9% 49.9%
62.9% 63.5% 62.2%

$ 67,019 $ 47983 $ 35470

2,660 1,996 691

18,750 15,367 14,192
(43.186) _ (36.866) _ (37.580)

$ 45243 § 28480 § 12773

9.1% 6.7% 51%
51% 3.6% 1.2%
11.1% 10.5% 10.4%




Management uses operating income before the specified items noted in the table below, among other
standards, to measure operating performance. We have added this information because we believe it assists in
understanding our results of operations on a comparative basis. This supplements, and is not intended to represent
a measure of performance in accordance with disclosures required by GAAP. A reconciliation of operating
income before the specified items to operating income as reported under GAAP follows.

Year Ended December 31

(Dollars in thousands)
Operating income, before specified items:

DiSabilities SEIVICES ..vvivvvvivveriereiitiiireiiiesreeesesrecstese s esreesveeereessessensesans $ 67,019 $§ 63,643 § 63,312
YOUth SEIVICES c.uviiiiiiiiiee e e be e s aae s e 2,660 2,572 2,379
Training SErVICES.....c.ceieiiiieeriieriteie sttt ree s erecnenas 18,750 15,367 14,608
Corporate and Other .........coeciieniieninreneie e e {40947) (38.139) _ (35.904)
COoNSONAALEA ......c.veieeeieeecieer ettt ettt e st atberane s $ 47482 $§ 43443 $ 44395
Operating income, as TEPOITEd ........covevverirrireririerenieenieenreeree et eserienes $ 45243 $ 28,480 $ 12,773
Specified items: «
Refinancing Charge .......coocoveeiereiieieiiee ettt s 2,545 — —
Gains on debt extinguishment ............ccoiveiiveiincninece e (306) 1,277) —
Write-off of doubtful accounts receivable.........ooccevveiiiiviniiiivereecie, — 14,764 15,500
NO-COTE OPETALION COSLS ..euverierieerriererrierrtiereieseererantreenssresereoaesreesssiaee — 1,476 —
Accrual for workers’ compensation.............. ettt ettt — — 6,500
ClOSUIE CHALZE ....vveviieirriieeieesii e e e et sre e sreasee s saas s s e sanesbessanesans _ — 1,595
Amortization of 200AWill ........c.ceviiieiiiiiniirc e — — 8.027
Operating income, before specified items...........coecrireirneiverrceiinceecnns $ 47482 $§ 43443 $§ 44,395
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During the periods presented, we recorded the following items. These specified items are broken out in

the table below to more clearly provide a basis for comparison between periods.

Diluted

Operating Net Eamings

Statement of Income Income Income per Share
Line Item Impacted Impact Impact Impact

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31, 2003:
§)

Refinancing charge Other operating expense $§ 2545 8% (1,629 8%  (0.07)
Gains on debt extinguishment @ Other operating income 306 196 0.01
$§ (22398 (1433 § (0.06)
Year Ended December 31, 2002:
Write-off of doubtful Facility and program $§ (14,764) $ 9,522) § (0.39)
accounts receivable expenses
Costs associated with Facility and program (1,476) (952) (0.04)
non-core operation expenses '
Gains on debt extinguishment © Other operating income 1,277 823 0.04
$ (14963) 8 (9.651) § (0.39)
Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful Facility and program $  (15,500) § 9,319) $ (0.38)
accounts receivable © expenses
Accrual for workers’ Facility and program (6,500) (3,908) (0.16)
compensation expenses
Amortization of goodwill ® Depreciation and (8,027) (6,262) (0.26)
amortization :
Closure charge Other operating expense (1,595) (90D) (0.04)

$ (31622) § _(20390) $ __(0.84)

O

(&3]

3

“)

)

6

]

®
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We recorded a pre-tax charge of $2.5 million related to the refinancing and redemption of our 6% convertible subordinated notes,
including write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs, premiums paid to note holders for early redemption, and costs of a related
consent solicitation.

During 2003, we completed transactions to redeem $4.3 million and $2.9 million of our 6% and 5.9% convertible subordinated
notes, respectively, resulting in gains on extinguishment of debt of $0.3 million.

The $14.8 million accounts receivable write-off in the fourth quarter of 2002 eliminates substantially all trade receivables with
dates of service 2000 and before. We wrote off the amounts after consideration of the deterioration in various states’ budgets and
the resulting impact on opportunities for collection.

The non-core operation charge relates to costs associated with an investigation and closure of certain units of a non-core operation
which provides skills training to persons with severe mental illness in Texas. The mental health operation was managed by its

founders under a management contract and represents less than 1% of the total revenues of the Disabilities Services division.

During 2002, we completed transactions to redeem $6.0 million of the 6% convertible subordinated notes resulting in gains on
extinguishment of debt of approximately $1.3 miilion.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded an additional reserve for losses on accounts receivable of $15.5 million as a result of
information obtained during the implementation of the new accounts receivable information system.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded an additional provision for insurance claims for workers’ compensation of $6.5 million
based on actuarial studies of our claims experience.

Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible A ssets, and are no longer amortizing goodwill.

In the first quarter of 2001, we recorded a charge of $1.6 million related to the write-off of assets and costs associated with the
cessation of certain operations in Tennessee.
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Consolidated

Consolidated revenues for 2003 increased 5% over 2002, attributable primarily to the acquisition of Arbor
E&T, the 166 new homes added in 2003, full year impact of the 164 new homes added in 2002, and the continued
growth in our periodic in-home services offset by overall rate decreases of approximately 0.3% and the loss of the
Clements Job Corps contract. Revenues grew 4% in 2002 over 2001 resulting primarily from the growth in our
periodic in-home services and 164 homes opened during 2002.

Operating income increased to $45.2 million in 2003 from $28.5 million in 2002 due primarily to $15.0
million of charges taken in 2002 as previously described and as a result of the 2003 Arbor E&T acquisition which
added approximately $3.5 million of operating income.

Similarly, operating income increased to $28.5 million in 2002 from $12.8 million in 2001 due primarily
to charges that were present in 2001 but not in 2002. Additionally, 2001 operating income was impacted by $8.0
million of goodwill amortization which was not present in 2002. Lastly, our operating results for 2002 as
compared to 2001 reflect the cost pressures from a competitive labor market in certain regions. We had several
initiatives to manage these labor cost pressures, including enhanced recruitment and retention programs in order
to reduce the need for overtime and temporary staffing, evaluating and monitoring staff patterns and negotiating
improved reimbursement rates from certain states. Additionally, we substantially completed deployment of an
automated time and attendance management system which enabled us to more efficiently staff our facilities and
monitor staffing, resulting in reduced overtime and temporary staffing. Labor costs as a percentage of revenue
increased in 2002 compared to 2001 due to the effect of wage pass-throughs and growth in periodic in-home
services.

As a percentage of total revenues, corporate general and administrative expenses remained fairly
consistent at 3.8% in 2003, 3.9% in 2002 and 3.8% in 2001 due to continued cost containment measures including
restrictions on non-essential expenses.

Depreciation and amortization decreased significantly in 2003 and 2002 compared to 2001 primarily as
we no longer amortize goodwill. Goodwill amortization was $8.0 million in 2001.

Interest expense decreased $0.3 million in 2003 compared to an increase of $5.3 million in 2002. The
increase in 2002 compared to 2001 is due principally to a full year of interest on the senior notes issued in
November 2001.

Our effective income tax rates were 36.0%, 36.0% and 30.5% in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
effective tax rates in 2003 and 2002 approximated the statutory rate considering the impact of state taxes and the
benefit of jobs credits. The lower rate in 2001 is attributable to a reported loss combined with a fixed level of
nondeductible goodwill amortization.

Disabilities Services

Disabilities Services revenues increased 3% in 2003 over 2002 compared to a 4% increase in 2002 over
2001. Revenues increased in 2003 from the addition of 164 new homes added throughout 2002, the 166 new
homes added throughout 2003 and growth in our periodic in-home services. Revenues increased in 2002 over
2001 due primarily to the addition of 164 new homes and periodic in-home services growth. Operating margin for
this division increased from 6.7% in 2002 to 9.0% in 2003, due primarily to the effect of the write-off of doubtful
accounts receivable of $14.2 million applicable to this division in 2002.

Youth Services

Youth Services revenues decreased 7% in 2003 over 2002 and 5% in 2002 over 2001, resulting primarily
from reduced revenues at certain Youthtrack operations. Operating margin for this division increased to 5.1% in
2003 from 3.6% in 2002 and from 1.2% in 2001, due in part to the workers’ compensation charge of $0.6 million
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applicable to this division in 2001, as well as the closure of under-performing programs during 2003 and 2002.
Before these specified items, operating margin was 5.1% in 2003, 4.6% in 2002 and 4.0% in 2001. Improved
management and the closure of under-performing programs during 2003 and 2002 resulted in increased margins
before specified items. We believe the reductions reflect the funding priorities of these states in response to
budgetary pressures.

Training Services

Training Services revenues increased 15% in 2003 over 2002 and 7% in 2002 over 2001. The primary
source of the 2003 increase is the addition of Arbor E&T and the Tulsa Job Corps contract which contributed
approximately $30 million and $4 million, respectively, in revenues in 2003. This increase was partially offset by
the loss of the Clements Job Corps contract which contributed incremental revenue in 2002 of approximately $19
million. Operating margin for this division was 11.1% compared to relatively stable margins of 10.5% in 2002
and 10.4% in 2001. Again, the primary driver of the 2003 increase was Arbor E&T.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Total assets decreased 8% in 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to the use of cash on hand of
approximately $68 million for the redemption of the 6% convertible subordinated notes. This was somewhat
offset by increases in accounts receivable due to the growth in revenues and additions to goodwill related to the
Arbor E&T purchase.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, cash provided by operating activities was $51.5 million
compared to $36.0 million for 2002 and $11.9 million for 2001. The increase in 2003 from 2002 was due
primarily to tax refunds of $11.6 million, higher profitability and strong cash collections. The increase in 2002
from 2001 was related primarily to higher profitability, less tax expenditures, and improved cash collections.

Days revenue in net accounts receivable were 48 days at December 31, 2003, compared to 48 days at
December 31, 2002 and 53 days at December 31, 2001. Net accounts receivable at December 31, 2003 increased
to $129.2 million, compared to $124.6 million at December 31, 2002 and $132.2 million at December 31, 2001.
The increase in 2003 over 2002 relates to the overall increase in revenues including the addition of Arbor E&T.
The improvement in 2002 over 2001 reflects the fourth quarter write-off of $14.8 million recorded in 2002 and
improved collections. Of the total net accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2003 and 2002, approximately
7% and 5%, respectively, were greater than 360 days.

During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, cash used in investing activities was $23.5 million
and $16.1 million, respectively, primarily for purchases of property and equipment, while in 2001, cash provided
by investing activities was $16.9 million. Cash provided by investing activities in 2001 resulted primarily from
the sale and leaseback of certain of our owned properties with cash proceeds of $26.3 million. Proceeds from
these activities were used primarily to pay down amounts owed under our previous credit facility. Maintenance
capital expenditures remained relatively constant at approximately 1% of total revenues.

Financing activities for 2003 resulted in the use of cash of $76.6 million, primarily related to the
redemption of the 6% convertible subordinated notes offset by the draw down of $22 million from the term loan.
Financing activities for 2002 resulted in the use of cash amounting to $6.8 million, primarily related to the
redemption of debt during the year. Financing activities used cash of $3.3 million in 2001 reflecting pay downs of
the credit facility from the sale-leaseback proceeds.

Our capital requirements relate primarily to the working capital needed for general corporate purposes
and our plans to expand through the development of new facilities and programs. We have historically satisfied
our working capital requirements, capital expenditures and scheduled debt payments from our operating cash flow
and utilization of our credit facility.
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On December 31, 2003, we completed an agreement for a $135 million senior credit facility and the
redemption of our 6% convertible subordinated notes due December 2004. This senior credit facility replaces the
previously held $80 million credit facility with National City Bank (NCB facility) and matures in January 2008.
Bank One Capital Markets led the syndication for the senior credit facility, which includes a $100 million
revolver and a $35 million term loan. The revolver includes a $65 million sub-limit for letters of credit. In
December, we formally issued the notice to call the 6% convertible subordinated notes, which were redeemed by
the trustee on January 12, 2004. We funded the redemption and were relieved as primary obligor on December 31,
2003, with $22 million from the term loan and the remainder from cash on hand. The balance of the term loan
facility is undrawn. As of December 31, 2003, we had irrevocable standby letters of credit in the principal amount
of $41.7 million issued primarily in connection with our insurance programs. As of December 31, 2003, we had
$46.2 million available under the revolver as our borrowing base under the revolver was $87.9 million on that
date. Our borrowing base is a function of our accounts receivable balance as of the reporting date. The facility
contains various financial covenants relating to net worth, capital expenditures and rentals and requires us to
maintain specified ratios with respect to fixed charge coverage and leverage. We are in compliance with our debt
covenants as of December 31, 2003. Our ability to achieve the thresholds provided for in the financial covenants
largely depends upon the maintenance of continued profitability and/or reductions of amounts borrowed under the
facility, and continued cash collections.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, included in our cash and cash equivalents balance is $9.0 million and
$5.0 million, respectively, of cash held on deposit with an insurance carrier as collateral for our insurance
program. In accordance with our collateral arrangement with the insurance carrier, such deposit may at our
discretion be exchanged for a letter of credit.

We believe sources of funds described above, in addition to cash generated from operations and amounts
remaining available under our credit facility, will be sufficient to meet our working capital, planned capital
expenditure and scheduled debt repayment requirements for the next twelve months.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet A mangements

Information concerning our contractual obligations and commercial commitments follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 20052006 | 20072008 | 2009 and

Thereafter
Long-term Debt $ 185,611 $ 3,857 $ 20,140 $ 161,571 $ 43
Capital Lease Obligations 4,074 1,252 2,187 382 253
Operating Leases 156,347 30,264 48,974 31,938 45,171
Purchase Contracts - - - - -
Total Contractual Cash Obligations $ 346,032 $ 35,373 $ 71,301 $ 193,891 $ 45,467

Amount of Commitments Expiring per Pedod

Other Commercial Commitments | ¢ LRGS0 20052006 | 20072008 | )20

Standby Letters—of-Credit $ 41,654 $ 41,654 — — —-—
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In accordance with the definition under Securities and Exchange Commission rules, the following qualify
as off-balance sheet arrangements:

e any obligation under certain guarantees or contracts;

e a retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity or similar entity or
similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to that entity for such assets;

o any obligation under certain derivative instruments;

o any obligation under a material variable interest held by the registrant in an unconsolidated entity that
provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to the registrant, or engages in leasing,
hedging or research and development services with the registrant.

The Company owns 40% equity and voting interest in one of Alutiiq LLC’s (Alutiiq) subsidiaries, Alutiiq
Professional Services, LLC (APS). Since the purchase of the minority interest of APS in 2001, we have treated
the entity as an equity investment, recognizing 40% of the entity’s earnings as additional revenue (less than $0.1
million for all years presented). Conversely, Alutiiq continues to consolidate APS and recognize an offsetting
minority interest for our portion of APS’s earnings. Management evaluated APS in light of FASB Interpretation
No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, as restated in December 2003, and concluded that although
APS is considered a variable interest entity, Alutiiq is the primary beneficiary. Accordingly, we continue to record
40% interest in APS’s net income or loss. There were no other significant off-balance sheet transactions or
interests.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards
See Note 1 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Certain Risk Factors

We derive virtually all of our revenues from federal, state and local government agencies, including state
Medicaid programs. Our revenues therefore are determined by the size of the governmental appropriations for the
services we provide. Budgetary pressures, as well as economic, industry, political and other factors, could
influence governments not to increase and possibly to decrease appropriations for these services which could
reduce our margins materially. Future federal or state initiatives could institute managed care programs for
persons we serve or otherwise make material changes to the Medicaid program as it now exists. Federal, state and
local government agencies generally condition their contracts with us upon a sufficient budgetary appropriation. If
a government agency does not receive an appropriation sufficient to cover their contractual obligations with us,
they may terminate a contract or defer or reduce our reimbursement. Additionally, there is risk that previously
appropriated funds could be reduced through subsequent legislation. The loss of, or reduction of, reimbursement
under our contracts could have a material adverse effect on our operations. This is mitigated by the fact that we
operate in 32 states. For the year ended 2003, we experienced an aggregate rate decrease for our Disabilities
Services division of approximately 0.3%.

Our historical growth in revenues has been directly related to increases in the number of individuals
served in each of our operating segments. This growth has depended largely upon development-driven activities,
including the acquisitions of other businesses or facilities, the acquisition of management contract rights to
operate facilities, the award of contracts to open new facilities or start new operations or to assume management
of facilities previously operated by governmental agencies or other organizations, and the extension or renewal of
contracts previously awarded to us. Our future revenues will depend primarily upon our ability to maintain,
expand and renew existing service contracts and existing leases, and to a lesser extent upon our ability to obtain
additional contracts to provide services to the special needs populations we serve, whether through awards in
response to requests for proposals for new programs, in connection with facilities being privatized by
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governmental agencies, or by selected acquisitions. OQur Job Corps contracts are re-bid, regardless of operating
performance, every five years. We may not be successful in bidding for contracts to operate, or to continue
operating, Job Corps centers. Changes in the market for services and contracts, including increasing competition,
transition costs or costs to implement awarded contracts, could adversely affect the timing and/or viability of
future development activities. Additionally, many of our contracts are subject to state or federal government
procurement rules and procedures; changes in procurement policies that may be adopted by one or more of these
agencies could also adversely affect our ability to obtain and retain these contracts.

Our revenues and operating profitability depend on our ability to maintain our existing reimbursement
levels, to obtain periodic increases in reimbursement rates to meet higher costs and demand for more services, and
to receive timely payment from applicable government agencies. If we do not receive or cannot negotiate
increases in reimbursement rates at approximately the same time as our costs of providing services increase, our
revenues and profitability could be adversely affected. Changes in how federal and state government agencies
operate reimbursement programs can also affect our operating results and financial condition. Government
reimbursement, group home credentialing and MR/DD client Medicaid eligibility and service authorization
procedures are often complicated and burdensome, and delays can result from, among other reasons, securing
documentation timely and coordinating necessary eligibility paperwork between agencies. These reimbursement
and procedural issues occasionally cause us to have to resubmit claims several times before payment is remitted
and are primarily responsible for our aged receivables. Changes in the manner in which state agencies interpret
program policies and procedures, and review and audit billings and costs could also affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition and our ability to meet obligations under our indebtedness.

Our cost structure and ultimate operating profitability are directly related to our labor costs. Labor costs
may be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including limited availability of qualified personnel in each
geographic area, local competitive forces, the ineffective utilization of our labor force, changes in minimum
wages or other direct personnel costs, strikes or work stoppages by employees represented by labor unions, and
changes in client services models, such as the trends toward supported living and managed care. The difficulty
experienced in hiring direct service staff and nursing staff in certain markets from time to time has resulted in
higher labor costs in some of our operating units. These higher labor costs are associated with increased overtime,
recruitment and retention, training programs, and use of temporary staffing personnel and outside clinical
consultants.

Additionally, the maintenance and expansion of our operations depend on the continuation of trends
toward downsizing, privatization and consolidation and our ability to tailor our services to meet the specific needs
of the populations we serve. Our success in a changing operational environment is subject to a variety of political,
economic, social and legal pressures. Such pressures include a desire of governmental agencies to reduce costs
and increase levels of services; federal, state and local budgetary constraints; and actions brought by advocacy
groups and the courts to change existing service delivery systems. Material changes resulting from these trends
and pressures could adversely affect the demand for and reimbursement of our services and our operating
flexibility, and ultimately our revenues and profitability.

Media coverage of the industry, including operators of facilities and programs for persons with mental
retardation and other developmental disabilities, has from time to time included reports critical of the current
trend toward privatization and of the operation of certain of these facilities and programs. Adverse media
coverage about providers of these services in general and us, in particular, could lead to increased regulatory
scrutiny in some areas, and could adversely affect our revenues and profitability by, among other things,
adversely affecting our ability to obtain or retain contracts, discouraging government agencies from privatizing
facilities and programs; increasing regulation and resulting compliance costs; or discouraging clients from using
our services.

In recent years, changes in the market for insurance, particularly for professional and general liability
coverage, have made it more difficult to obtain insurance coverage at reasonable rates. As a result, our insurance
program costs for 2003 continued to increase. Our self-insured retentions have also increased. The professional
and general liability coverage provides for a $250,000 deductible per occurrence, and claims limits of $4.8 million
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per occurrence up to a $6 million annual aggregate limit. Qur workers’ compensation coverage provides for a $1.0
million deductible per occurrence, and claims up to statutory limits. We utilize historical data to estimate our
reserves for our insurance programs. If losses on asserted claims exceed the current insurance coverage and
accrued reserves, our business, results of operations, financial condition and ability to meet obligations under our
indebtedness could be adversely affected.

The collection of accounts receivable is a significant management challenge and requires continual focus.
Prior to 2002, many of our accounts receivable controls were managed through manual procedures. We have
expended significant effort and resources to implement a new accounts receivable system which was substantially
in place at the end of 2002. The limitations of some state information systems and procedures, such as the
inability to receive documentation or disperse funds electronically, may limit the benefits we derive from our new
system. We must maintain or continue to improve our controls and procedures for managing our accounts
receivable billing and collection activities if we are to collect our accounts receivable on a timely basis. An
inability to do so could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and ability to
satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness.

Our financial results depend on timely billing of payor agencies, effectively managing collections, and
efficiently utilizing our personnel to manage labor costs. We have completed the new accounts receivable system
and interactive automated time and attendance management system that have improved our management of these
functions resulting in improved collections and reductions in operating expenses.

Our ability to generate sufficient cash flows from operations to make scheduled payments on our debt
obligations and maintain compliance with various financial covenants contained in our debt arrangements will
depend on our future financial performance, which will be affected by a range of economic, competitive and
business factors, many of which are outside of our control. If we do not generate sufficient cash flows from
operations to satisfy our debt obligations and maintain covenant compliance, we may have to undertake
alternative financing plans, such as refinancing or restructuring our debt, selling assets, reducing or delaying
capital investments or seeking to raise additional capital. We can provide no assurance that any refinancing
(including the commitment described in “Liquidity and Capital Resources” above) would be possible, that any
assets could be sold, or, if sold, of the timing of the sales and the amount of proceeds realized from those sales, or
that additional financing could be obtained on acceptable terms, if at all. Our inability to generate sufficient cash
flow to satisfy our debt obligations, maintain covenant compliance or refinance our obligations on commercially
reasonable terms would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations, as well as on our ability to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness.

We must comply with comprehensive government regulation of our business, including statutes,
regulations and policies governing the licensing of our facilities, the quality of our service, the revenues we
receive for our services, and reimbursement for the cost of our services. If we fail to comply with these laws, we
can lose contracts and revenues, thereby harming our financial results. State and federal regulatory agencies have
broad discretionary powers over the administration and enforcement of laws and regulations that govern our
operations. A material violation of a law or regulation could subject us to fines and penalties and in some
circumstances could disqualify some or all of the facilities and programs under our control from future
participation in Medicaid or other government programs. The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996 (HIPAA) could increase potential penalties. Furthermore, future regulation or legislation affecting our
programs may require us to change our operations significantly or incur increased costs..

Our success in obtaining new contracts and renewals of our existing contracts depends upon maintaining
our reputation as a quality service provider among governmental authorities, advocacy groups for persons with
developmental disabilities and their families, and the public. We also rely on government entities to refer clients
to our facilities and programs. Negative publicity, changes in public perception, the actions of consumers under
our care or investigations with respect to our industry, operations or policies could increase government scrutiny,
increase compliance costs, hinder our ability to obtain or retain contracts, reduce referrals, discourage
privatization of facilities and programs, and discourage clients from using our services. Any of these events could
have a material adverse effect on our financial results and condition.
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Our management of residential, training, educational and support programs for our clients exposes us to
potential claims or litigation by our clients or other persons for wrongful death, personal injury or other damages
resulting from contact with our facilities, programs, personnel or other clients. Regulatory agencies may initiate
administrative proceedings alleging violations of statutes and regulations arising from our programs and facilities
and seeking to impose monetary penalties on us. We could be required to pay substantial amounts of money to
respond to regulatory investigations or, if we do not prevail, in damages or penalties arising from these legal
proceedings and some awards of damages or penalties may not be covered by any insurance. If our third-party
insurance coverage and self-insurance reserves are not adequate to cover these claims, it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and ability to satisfy our obligations
under our indebtedness.

Expenses incurred under federal, state and local government agency contracts for any of our services, as
well as management contracts with providers of record for such agencies, are subject to examination by agencies
administering the contracts and services. A negative outcome from any of these examinations could increase
government scrutiny, increase compliance costs and hinder our ability to obtain or retain contracts. Any of these
events could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and condition.

Our revenues and net income may fluctuate from quarter to quarter, in part because annual Medicaid rate
adjustments may be announced by the various states at different times of the year and are usually retroactive to
the beginning of the particular state's fiscal reporting period. Generally, future adjustments in reimbursement rates
in most states will consist primarily of cost-of-living adjustments, adjustments based upon reported historical
costs of operations, or other negotiated changes in rates. However, many states in which we operate are
experiencing budgetary pressures and certain of these states have initiated service reductions, or rate freezes
and/or rate reductions. Additionally, some states have, from time to time, revised their rate-setting methodologies,
which has resulted in rate decreases as well as rate increases. However, in certain states, we have been successful
in mitigating rate reductions by initiating programmatic changes that produce cost savings. For 2003, we
experienced an aggregate rate decrease for our Disabilities Services division of approximately 0.3%.

Current initiatives at the federal or state level may materially change the Medicaid program as it now
exists. Future revenues may be affected by changes in rate-setting structures, methodologies or interpretations that
may be proposed or are under consideration in states where we operate. Also, some states have considered
initiating managed care plans for persons currently in Medicaid programs. At this time, we cannot determine the
impact of such changes, or the effect of various federal initiatives that have been proposed.

Our facility and program expenses may also fluctuate from period to period, due in large part to changes
in labor costs and insurance costs. Labor costs are affected by a number of factors, including the availability of
qualified personnel, effective management of our programs, changes in service models, state budgetary pressures,
severity of weather and other acts of God. Our annual insurance costs and self-insured retention limits have risen
due in large part to the insurance market.

Future revenues may be affected by changes in rate-setting structures, methodologies or interpretations
that may be proposed or are under consideration in states where we operate. Also, some states have considered
initiating managed care plans for persons currently in Medicaid programs. At this time, we cannot determine the
impact of such changes, or the effect of various federal initiatives that have been proposed.

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this report that are not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. In addition, we expect to make such forward-
looking statements in future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in press releases, and in oral
and written statements made by us or with our approval. These forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to: (1) projections of revenues, income or loss, earnings or loss per share, capital structure and other
financial items; (2) statements of plans and objectives of ResCare or our management or Board of Directors; (3)
statements of future actions or economic performance, including development activities; and (4) statements of
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assumptions underlying such statements. Words such as "believes," "anticipates,” "expects,” "intends," "plans,"
“targeted," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive
means of identifying such statements.

1"non

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties which may cause actual results to differ
materially from those in such statements. Some of the events or circumstances that could cause actual results to
differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements are discussed in the "Certain Risk Factors" section
above. Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which such statements are made, and we
undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances occurring after
the date on which such statement is made.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

While we are exposed to changes in interest rates as a result of our outstanding variable rate debt, we do
not currently utilize any derivative financial instruments related to our interest rate exposure. At December 31,
2003, we had variable rate debt outstanding of approximately $22.0 million as compared to $2.0 million
outstanding at December 31, 2002. The variable rate debt outstanding principally relates to the term loan which
has an interest rate based on margins over LIBOR or prime, tiered based upon leverage calculations. An increase
in the interest rate of 100 basis points on the debt balance outstanding as of December 31, 2003, would increase
interest expense approximately $0.2 million annually.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Refer to pages F-1 through F-26.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with A ccountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

ResCare’s management, under the supervision and with the participation of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”), evaluated the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2003. Based on that evaluation, the
CEO and CFO concluded that ResCare’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely making known
to them material information required to be disclosed in the reports filed or submitted under the Securities
Exchange Act. There were no changes in ResCare’s internal controls over financial reporting during the fourth
quarter of 2003 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART III

Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant; Executive Compensation;
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters; Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions; and Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by these Items is omitted because we are filing a definitive proxy statement
pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report which
includes the required information. The required information contained in our proxy statement is incorporated
herein by reference.

We have adopted a code of ethics applicable to the chief executive officer, chief financial officer and
controller. We plan to post the Code of Ethics on our website. In the event that we amend or waive any of the
provisions of the Code of Ethics applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or
controller, we intend to disclose the same on our website at http://www.rescare.com. We will provide to any
person without charge, upon request, a copy of the Code of Ethics. You can request a copy by contacting our
Communications department, 10140 Linn Station Road, Louisville, Kentucky, 40223, (telephone) 502-394-2100
or communications@rescare.com .
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PARTIV

Item 15, Exhibits, Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.
(a)(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules:
Page
Independent AUditors’ REPOIT.....coccveciiveriiiiieicieeee ettt F-2
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets — As of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ........cccccvvvvveveninnee E-3
Consolidated Statements of Income — Years Ended December 31, 2003,
2002 AN 2001 ... ettt e ebeeenes F-4
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity ~ Years Ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001 .....ooriieiieeie e ettt E-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years Ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 ..o ettt et aeenns F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.........ccoviveeeiiieiieeiiiiee e e e ere e F-7
Financial Statement Schedule *: v
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying ACCOUNTS ..........ccvevrvririnieieecrerer e F-26

0]

(a)2)
31

32

4.1

42

43

44

4.5

All other financial statement schedules are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been
omitted.

Index to Exhibits:

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company dated December 18, 1992
incorporating the Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation dated May
29, 1997. Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998 is hereby incorporated by reference.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company. Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-50726) is hereby incorporated by reference.

Indenture dated November 15, 2001, by and among Res-Care, Inc., the Guarantors named therein
and National City Bank, as trustee, relating to the Company’s $150,000,000 10 5/8% Senior
Notes due 2008. Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November
20, 2001, is hereby incorporated by reference.

Instrument of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance dated February 12, 2002, by and among
Res-Care, Inc., National City Bank and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association.
Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001 is hereby incorporated by reference.

Article VI of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company included in
Exhibit 3.1.

Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 10, 2004, by and between Res-Care, Inc., a
Kentucky corporation, and Onex Partners LP, Onex American Holdings III, LLC, Onex U.S.
Principals LP, Res-Care Executive Investco LLC. (filed herewith)

Form of Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of R657Care, Inc. creating Series A
Preferred Stock. (filed herewith)
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(a)(2) Index to Exhibits (continued):

4.6

4.7

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Form of Registration Rights Agreement by and among Res-Care, Inc. and Onex Partners LP, Onex
American Holdings III, LLC, Onex U.S. Principals LP, and Res-Care Executive Investco LLC
dated as of March 10, 2004. (filed herewith)

Statement of Additional Terms and Conditions dated as of March 15, 1998 relating to $22,000,000
of 5.9% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2005. Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 is hereby incorporated by
reference.

1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Company (adopted April 24, 1991, amended and restated
as of February 23, 1995). Exhibit 4 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg.
No. 33-80331) is hereby incorporated by reference.

Amendment to Amended and Restated 1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Company. Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997 is
hereby incorporated by reference.

1993 Non-Employee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive Plan of the Company (adopted October
28, 1993). Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 33-
76612) is hereby incorporated by reference.

Res-Care, Inc. 1998 Omnibus Stock Plan effective June 18, 1998. Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-57167) is hereby incorporated by reference.

1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan effective July 1, 1995. Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 33-85964) is hereby incorporated by reference.

Res-Care, Inc. 401(K) Restoration Plan effective December 1, 1995. Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 is hereby incorporated by
reference.

Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and Ronald G. Geary dated as of
October 26, 1995, and amended December 31, 2002. Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended JTune 30, 2003 is hereby incorporated by
reference.

Res-Care, Inc. 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Compensation Plan. Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-50726) is hereby incorporated by reference.

Res-Care, Inc. 2000 Nonemployee Directors Stock Ownership Incentive Plan. Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-50726) is hereby incorporated
by reference.

Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and Ralph G. Gronefeld, Jr., dated
February 14, 2001 and amended April 23, 2003. Exhibit 10.5 from the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 is hereby incorporated by
reference.

Employment Agreement between the Company and Vincent F. Doran, dated August 1, 2000.

Exhibit 10.11 from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2000 is hereby incorporated by reference.
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(a)(2) Index to Exhibits (continued):

10.12 Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and Paul G. Dunn, dated February
14, 2001 and amended April 23, 2003. Exhibit 10.2 from the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 is hereby incorporated by reference.

10.13  Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and L. Bryan Shaul, dated February
16, 2001 and amended April 23, 2003. Exhibit 10.6 from the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 is hereby incorporated by reference. -

10.14 Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and Katherine W. Gilchrist, dated
January 25, 2001 and amended April 23, 2003. Exhibit 10.4 from the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 is hereby incorporated by
reference. ,

10.15 Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and William J Ballard, dated
December 31, 2002 and amended April 23, 2003. Exhibit 10.1 from the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003 is hereby incorporated by
reference.

10.16  Credit Agreement dated as of December 31, 2003, among Res-Care, Inc. as Borrowers and the
lenders named therein as the Lenders, Bank One, NA, as Administrative Agent , Merrill Lynch
Capital and National City Bank of Kentucky as syndication agents and General Electric Capital
Corporation as documentation agent. (filed herewith)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company. (filed herewith)
23.1 Consent of Independent Auditors. (filed herewith)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act, as amended.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act, as amended.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:
On January 14, 2004, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing the closing of our new $135
million senior secured credit facility on December 31, 2003 and the redemption of our 6% Convertible

Subordinated Notes due December 2004,

On February 25, 2004, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing our financial results for the
fourth quarter ended December 31, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

RES-CARE, INC

Date: March 15,2004 By: _/s/ Ronald G. Geary

Ronald G. Geary
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

_ Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Ronald G. Geary Chairman of the Board, President, Chief March 15, 2004
Ronald G. Geary Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ L. Bryan Shaul Executive Vice President Finance and March 15, 2004
L. Bryan Shaul Administration and Chief Financial Officer
/s/ Seymour L. Bryson Director March 15, 2004

Seymour L. Bryson

/s/ James R. Fornear Director March 15, 2004
James R. Fornear

/s/ Olivia F. Kirtley Director March 15, 2004
Olivia F. Kirtley

/s/ Spiro B. Mitsos Director March 15, 2004
Spiro B. Mitsos

/s/ Vincent D. Pettinelli Director March 15, 2004
Vincent D. Pettinelli

/s/ Michael J. Foster Director March 15, 2004
Michael J. Foster

/s/ E. Halsey Sandford Director March 15, 2004
E. Halsey Sandford

/s/ Steven S. Reed Director March 15, 2004
Steven S. Reed

38




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21.1

State of
Subsidiary Incorporation

Community Alternatives Indiana, Inc. Delaware
Community Alternatives Nebraska, Inc. Delaware
Community Advantage, Inc. Delaware
Texas Home Management, Inc. Delaware
Capital TX Investments, Inc. Delaware
THM Homes, Inc. Delaware
Community Alternatives Texas Partner, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care New Mexico, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Ohio, Inc. Delaware
CATX Properties, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care California, Inc. d/b/a RCCA Services Delaware
RSCR California, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Kansas, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Illinois, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Oklahoma, Inc. Delaware
Youthtrack, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Training Technologies, Inc. Delaware
RSCR West Virginia, Inc. Delaware
Community Alternatives Virginia, Inc. Delaware
Community Alternatives Kentucky, Inc. Delaware
Alternative Youth Services, Inc, Delaware
Res-Care Premier, Inc. Delaware
CNC/Access, Inc. Rhode Island
Community Alternatives Iilinois, Inc. Delaware
Community Alternatives Missouri, Inc. Missouri
The Academy for Individual Excellence, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Other Options, Inc. Delaware
Creative Networks, L.L.C. Arizona
Res-Care New Jersey, Inc. Delaware
Normal Life, Inc. Kentucky
Res-Care Alabama, Inc. Delaware
Res-Care Washington, Inc. Delaware
Southern Home Care Services, Inc. Georgia
Tangram Rehabilitation Network, Inc. Texas
PeopieServe, Inc. Delaware
Arbor E&T, LLC Kentucky
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors
Res-Care, Inc.

We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 33-61878), (No. 33-76612),
(No. 33-85964), (No. 33-80331), (No. 333-57167), (No. 333-81465) and (No. 333-50726) on Form S-8, (No. 333-
75875) and (No. 333-82708) on Form S-4 and (No. 333-23599), (No. 333-32513) and (No. 333-44029) on Form
S-3 of Res-Care, Inc. of our report dated February 24, 2004, except as to Note 16 which is as of March 10, 2004,
with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Res-Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003 and related financial statement schedule, which report appears
in the December 31, 2003 annual report on Form 10-K of Res-Care, Inc. Our report refers to changes in the
method of accounting in 2002 for goodwill and other intangible assets.

KPMe LP

Louisville, Kentucky
March 12, 2004
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Ronald G. Geary, certify that:

L.
2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Res-Care, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d- 15(e)) for the registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(©) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reportmg, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
‘ over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
: significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 15, 2004 By: /s/ Ronald G. Geary

Ronald G. Geary
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, L. Bryan Shaul, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Res-Care, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(©) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors:

(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 15, 2004 By: /s/ L. Bryan Shaul

L. Bryan Shaul
Executive Vice President Finance & A dministration
and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Res-Care, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report™), the undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

m The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: _March 15, 2004 By: /s/ Ronald G. Geary
Ronald G. Geary
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: _March 15, 2004 By: /s/ L. Bryan Shaul
L. Bryan Shaul
Executive Vice President of Finance & Administration
and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has been
provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Page
Independent AUdItOrs' REPOIT.........cciviviiiiiiiiiiii et e F-2
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets - As of December 31, 2003 and 2002..........coceeeveiveiieeeiiee it eetrerenne F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income - Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.......ccccvevvennee.. F-4
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity - Years Ended December 31, 2003,

2002 ANA 2001 .eviiieiie ittt ettt rr st eb et st e s st bt s e b bes s b b s es bt b e e et b b e e bbessrrbeeraessenteseeretaeireearreesraeenn F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 .................. F-6
Notes to Consolidated FINancial StateIMENtS......coovovvviireirieriirieeeetesieiiessrreeereessessiseieeseerssessersnresssessesssreee F-7

Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying ACCOUNLS .........ccoeeviirreriiieriiinieieresinteereniet st essssrerenessenaeneans F-26

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted, as the required information is inapplicable or
the information is presented in the financial statements or related notes.




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Res-Care, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Res-Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as listed in the
accompanying index on page F-1. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also
have audited the financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index on page F-1. These consolidated
financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether. the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall f1nanc1al
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Res-Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, Res-Care, Inc. adopted
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

KPMe LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 24, 2004, except as to Note 16
which is as of March 10, 2004




RES-CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIValEnLs ........ccecvveeeirieiinereee e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$9,464 in 2003 and $7,665 in 2002 .....ccciiiveeireiinre oo
Deferred INCOME LAXES ....vecvvveeerieeeiieeectieeeitereetreeirreeereseerereetreerersesnreesesseeas
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .........c.coveeeierveniiinceirnnennnenane
Refundable INCOME tAXES .......cevveeriiieeiireecree e cnteeeeereesbeeerreessaeeenve e ensees
Total CUITENt ASSELS 1.vvvvrrrieiiiiier i s errreeesenreeeeeeareeas
Property and eqUIPIMENt, NEL..........cocuveiiiiererrieeeiiectereenter e eeerteesbeenes e sraeene
GOOAWILL....oveieiiiieeeette sttt er e eeb et sttt a s e s etb e e e e rreaeseestnesestbaneessanrseseesntns
T B8 SETS . i iiiirireeei ittt e ceertiesie bt e s e e e ee s tr e e eetbbeeesistesseeseseseesbaeessessseeesesrenraenains

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable.........occcviriciieniiceciiieeri e et
ACCTUEH BXPEINSES. ....eeiinrieieeriiieciieeiesiesrceseeseeeteareebesaee et ss et s smeenbesseesbens
Current portion of long-term debt............ccccvmveernieriinienirneiccrne e e
Current portion of obligations under capital leases ...........coovveniviniiinnn,
Total current Habilities..........ccoeveirieinrerieniieee e
Long-term Habilities .........covveeiriiierrieeeeciniiresiesniisesrs e rsnseesiessrsesrnesveenseasaneens
Long-term debl. ..o
Obligations under capital IEASES ........cvvvviecviivivirieiirre e see et sees v
Deferred ZaiNS .......c.ocvieieeriiiereeie et sescere st ea e re e e tesae e ra e e sen e raenaens
Deferred iNCOME taXES......eoviiiiiiieieiree ettt see e et riee st ebeeeae e ceaer e
Total HAbIItIES .vveivvereieiriieieeireee i e sriee e e e ee st e eeineeeaineeserasns
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred shares, no par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares, no
shares issued or OUtStanding .........ccceeveveveeiniesieeenrecreieenceenieneenieenes
Common stock, no par value, authorized 40,000,000 shares, issued
28,723,857 in 2003 and 2002, outstanding 24,775,029 shares
in 2003 and 24,418,336 shares in 2002 ........cooorviveeiivverirneeireieieeeesnen
Additional paid-in Capital ......ccccueeeviirveiirienieee e e e s
Retained earnings.......c.ccviieriiieeniiicienincieneiee e s
Total shareholders’ equity ..........ccouververiieciiinrriienenree e

2003

$§ 23,440

129,199
18,115
10,178

439

181,371
68,422

230,306
22.927

$ 503,026

§ 37,985
66,979
3,857
1,252
110,073
791
181,754
2,822
5471
9,824
310,735

48,135
31,114

113,042

_ 192291
$ 503.026

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-3

2002

$ 72,089

124,609
16,621
16,102
11,850

241,311
61,668

218,256

_25.377

546,612

$ 33,957
61,507
329

972
96,765

- 84
258,378
2,745
5,769

_ 5692
369,433

47,904
29,620
__99.655
177,179

$ 546,612




RES-CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(In thousands, except per share data)

2003 2002 2001

REVEIUES ..ottt ettt sttt ettt ae s eneb s r e e $ 961,333 $919,724 $ 885,715
Facility and program eXpenses ...........covvveiiiiieniiiineniiieeiiiinesniessesseeesecessaenne 865461 _ 845316 _ 817.754
Facility and program CONntribULION ............cccoveeiierireinrin e eteiese st 95,872 74,408 67,961
Operating expenses (income):

Corporate general and adminiSratiVve ........ceveeeiiinieeeereniee e s 36,188 35,410 33,350

Depreciation and amOTtiZatioN ...........ccoevereeinerinneiiiesiieereesesnesneesrenne s 12,254 11,862 21,079

Other operating eXpenses (INCOME).......c..cveririereerenrerrierererenuseeessessenenne 2,187 (1,344) 719

Total OPErating EXPENSES ......covivererurverrereriernireerisaeiesaereeerernseases 50,629 45,928 55,188

OPerating INCOMIE.....vreeeuirveriieerieteete et ertesbeaessesteseesesseneesesseesessaseesassansassens 45,243 28,480 12,773
Other expenses (income):

INEELESt EXPEINSE...cvvirveeeririerieierietreietesseseansbesassesesaesestssesesseresesbasaessasesaseasanns 25,773 26,073 20,815

INterest INCOME......c.oovivveciiiniiii e (1.447) 1,775 (1,754)

Total Other EXPEnSES .......covvireririeriierc e 24,326 24,298 19.061

Income (108S) Defore INCOME LAXES ..vovvivvierieiireeiiiir st et e e s see e e ersraeesresnse e 20,917 4,182 (6,288)
Income tax expense (DENEfit)........cccimvirieriereriieiiiece et 7,530 1,506 (1.916)
INEt INCOMIE (JOSS).uuuriiiiiciricctreeitreeeree e eebeeetbeeebe s ebeeetreeesseesabesesnesensesessseeesees $ 13387 § 2676 $ (4.372)
Basic earnings (1088) PEr ShAre .........cccovvueiiiineiiirieiiceenenes et $§ 055 % 011 $ (018
Diluted earnings (108S) PEF SHATE ........ccccivivriieiriiiieriseeee e $ 054 $ 011 $ (0.18)
Weighted average number of common shares

BSIC. .t urettriiet ittt ettt bttt a e en e 24,500 24,409 24,357

DIIULEA ..ottt sttt et ettt s 24,801 24,550 24,357

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RES-CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(In thousands)

Additional
Common Stock Paid-In  Retained
Shares  Amount Capital Earnings  Total

Balance at December 31, 2000........ccccocevivvievieeciieereeeneens 24,318 $ 47,833 $ 28,939 $101,351 $178,123
INELIOSS ooeiiieeiei ettt ettt et rvee e e e bt e e er e e seabeesnessnne s — — — 4,372) (4,372)
Exercise of stock options, including related tax benefit..... 57 37 341 — 378
Balance at December 31, 2001 ....ccoviiviiiiiiiirveeirer e, 24,375 47,870 29,280 96,979 174,129
NELINCOMIE .ovecnvveiiiriiieeee it ee e et eer e eere e eabreens — — — 2,676 2,676
Exercise of stock options, including related tax benefit..... 43 34 340 — 374
Balance at December 31, 2002........ccccovevivieccerenieereneeenen, 24,418 47,904 29,620 99,655 177,179
NELINCOIME ...uvviiiieiiireeiiireee e e eerertane e e sereeteeaareeeessareeesas — — —_ 13,387 13,387
Exercise of stock options, including related tax benefit..... 357 231 1,494 — 1,725
Balance at December 31, 2003 .......ccooevirviriieeeeeireeeeeen, 24775 $ 48,135 $ 31,114 $113,042 $192,291

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RES-CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(In thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Operating activities:
INEt INCOME (L0SS) .iiiiuieriieirieiicriee e sesre s esaaee st s estaaeresaees s saesasonns $ 13,387 $ 2676 $ (4,372)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ..........ccoccereeeerecieenieniennesie e sesesnennes 12,254 11,862 21,079
Amortization of discount and deferred debt issuance costs on notes... 1,908 456 519
Deferred INCOME tAXES, NEL.....oiiiiiiiriireeeciieeeree ettt eee e ere s ave e 2,638 10,383 (7,131)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable ........ccooovviveniiiiienneeeennn, 7,328 19,566 19,293
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt ............cccceevvininncnnnninienen 1,330 (1,280) 3
Tax benefit from exercise of Stock OPHONS .......ccovvevivericenneniriienienns. 417 155 32
LSS ON Sale OF ASSELS...cuvrverireeieiecrieiecrieaiseteseeieetiesessestseseesieesaesse s 195 142 59
ClOSUIE ChArZE ....eoviiei ittt et s b e sen e st e — — 1,465
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE ...ooiviiiiiiiiiii e (11,918) (7,856) (11,138)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.........coveeivveecreeireeroneenerennas 3,641 51 (1,193)
OMRET ASSLS....uviiiriiictriectii ettt eeer e eereseteestt s sts s eee s ereesressbessarsesaraesanees (367) (282) (5,699)
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ...ttt et 4,028 2,153 4,341
ACCTUEH EXPEIISES -.evoveerereiieeereie et eieceneitesee b eseesaeeseeseeseeeeeeseenseseaene 5,499 10,774 2,331
Deferred GAINS ..covvvvivireieierieiiiee ettt ettt s (1,028) (1,470) (1,920)
ACCIUEd INCOME LAXES ...vvovreirrerireenreiieriiereeseeassessiesreesersseesaessesssessses 11,451 (11,192) (2,673)
Long-term Habilities .........ccovviiviiierieeiieerens s e ersen e esesnnes 707 (158) (3.047)
Cash provided by operating actiVities.........cecvcererreieriereniesnenees 51,470 35,980 11.949
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipmMent..........ccooveeevenerinienenieeineeereneee (14,141)  (13,692) (9,323)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired..........c.ccoccerieiniennin (9,758) (2,782) —
Proceeds from sale of aSSetS......cccueveriiriiriiireiiniiincieee e 405 341 26,261
Cash (used in) provided by investing aCtivities ........cccvvveevvrevrrnene (23.494) _ (16.,133) 16,938
Financing activities:
Net repayments under notes payable to bank ........c..ccoceeviiverenccnnnnn. — —  (130,000)
Repayments of long-term debt ..........cccivenivininniene e (95,877) (5,679) —_
Borrowings of long-term debt, Net ...........ccccevevnieviivnee e e 20,351 — 127,189
Net payments on obligations under capital leases..........ccccovcireenenen. (2,407) (1,295) (841)
Proceeds received from exercise of stock options............cececevvrincrnnne 1,308 219 347
Cash used in financing activities...........cevverivrecrernenererenn e (76.625) ___(6.759) (3.305)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents .......ccc.cooceecveiveneieieneencnnen. (48,649) 13,092 25,582
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..........ccccocevvvevinicnvinnininennn 72,089 58,997 33.415
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year...........cccocecvcnninnncicc, $§ 23440 $§ 72,089 § 58.997
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid (received) for:
INEETESE ..ot reete ettt ettt et et e b e st se b ss s s etesesteasesseseans s $ 26,863 $ 25,873 $ 19,929
Income taxes (net of refunds of $11.6 million, $1.0 million
and $0.2 million, reSpectively).....covevvireierisreieinererareseee s (6,563) 3,151 9,235
Supplemental Schedule of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Capital lease obligations incurred in connection with asset acquisition ..... 2,897 511 876
Capital lease obligations converted to operating 1€ases..........cccoveevevevrenns 1,767 —_ 3,891
Account receivable converted to note receivable..........ccoovveciie e 875 —_ —_

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RES-CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Description of Business

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Res-Care, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All
references in these financial statements to “ResCare,” “our company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” mean Res-Care, Inc.
and, unless the context otherwise requires, its consolidated subsidiaries. Significant intercompany accounts and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

We receive revenues primarily from the delivery of residential, training, educational and support services
to various populations with special needs. As more fully described in Note 9, we have three reportable operating
segments: (i) Disabilities Services, (i) Youth Services and (iii) Training Services.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Disabilities Services: Revenues are derived primarily from state Medicaid programs and from management
contracts with private operators, generally not-for-profit providers, who contract with state government agencies
and are also reimbursed under the Medicaid programs. Revenues are recorded at rates established at or before the
time services are rendered. Revenue is recognized in the period services are rendered.

Y outh Services: Juvenile treatment revenues are derived primarily from state-awarded contracts from state
agencies under various reimbursement systems. Reimbursement from state or locally awarded contracts varies per
facility or program, and is typically paid under fixed contract amounts, flat rates, or cost-based rates. Revenue is
recognized in the period services are rendered.

Training Services: Revenues include amounts reimbursable under cost reimbursement contracts with the
U.S. Department of Labor for operating Job Corps centers and with local and state governments for education and
training programs. The contracts provide reimbursement for all facility and program costs related to operations,
allowable indirect costs for general and administrative costs, plus a predetermined management fee, normally a
fixed percentage of facility and program costs. For certain of our current contracts and any contract renewals, the
management fee is a combination of fixed and performance-based. Final determination of amounts due under the
contracts is subject to audit and review by the applicable government agencies. Revenue is recognized in the period
associated costs are incurred.

Laws and regulations governing the government programs and contracts are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount in the near term. For each operating segment, expenses are subject to examination by agencies
administering the contracts and services. We believe that adequate provisions have been made for potential
adjustments arising from such examinations.

We are substantially dependent on revenues received under contracts with federal, state and local
government agencies. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we derived 11% of our revenues
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under contracts for individuals with mental retardation or other developmental disabilities services in Texas and
14%, 15% and 15%, respectively, of our revenues under contracts under the federal Job Corps program. Generally,
these contracts are subject to termination at the election of governmental agencies and in certain other
circumstances such as failure to comply with applicable regulations or quality of service issues.

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, included in our cash and cash equivalents balance is
$9.0 million and $5.0 million, respectively, of cash held on deposit with an insurance carrier as collateral for our
insurance program. In accordance with our collateral arrangement with the insurance carrier, such deposit may at
our discretion be exchanged for a letter of credit.

Valuation of A ccounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from Medicaid programs, other government
agencies and commercial insurance companies. An estimated allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is
recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a particular account will not be collected. In evaluating
the collectibility of accounts receivable, we consider a number of factors, including historical loss rates, age of the
accounts, changes in collection patterns, the status of ongoing disputes with third-party payors, general economic
conditions and the status of state budgets which may impact previously approved, but not yet paid, services.
Complex rules and regulations regarding billing and timely filing requirements in various states are also a factor in
our assessment of the collectibility of accounts receivable. Actual collections of accounts receivable in subsequent
periods may require changes in the estimated allowance for doubtful accounts. Changes in these estimates are
charged or credited to the results of operations in the period of the change of estimate.

Legal Contingencies

We are a party to numerous claims and lawsuits with respect to various matters. We provide for costs
related to contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount is reasonably determinable. We confer with
outside counsel in estimating our liability for certain legal contingencies. While we believe our provision for legal
contingencies is adequate, the outcome of legal proceedings is difficult to predict and we may settle legal claims or
be subject to judgments for amounts that exceed our estimates.

Valuation of Long-Lived A ssets

We regularly review the carrying value of long-lived assets with respect to any events or circumstances
that indicate a possible inability to recover their carrying amount. Indicators of impairment include, but are not
limited to, loss of contracts, significant census declines, reductions in reimbursement levels and significant
litigation. Our evaluation is based on undiscounted cash flow, profitability and projections that incorporate current
or projected operating results, as well as significant events or changes in the environment. If circumstances suggest
the recorded amounts cannot be recovered, the carrying values of such assets are reduced to fair value based upon
various techniques to estimate fair value.

Goodwill

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible A ssets. SFAS
141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 as well as all purchase method business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 142 requires that
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead be tested for
impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142. In addition, SFAS 142 provides that
intangible assets with definite lives should be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment in
accordance with existing guidelines.
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Costs of purchased businesses in excess of net assets acquired (goodwill) are accounted for under the
provisions of SFAS 142. Upon adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, we were required to test all existing
goodwill for impairment as of that date, and at least annually thereafter, unless changes in circumstances indicate
an impairment may have occurred sooner. We are required to test goodwill on a reporting unit basis. A reporting
unit is the operating segment unless, for businesses within that operating segment discrete financial information is
prepared and regularly reviewed by management, in which case such a component business is considered a
reporting unit. We use a fair value approach to test goodwill for impairment and recognize an impairment charge
for the amount, if any, by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implicit fair value. Fair values are
established using a weighted-average of discounted cash flows and comparative market multiples in the current
market conditions.

We adopted the provisions of SFAS 141 upon its issuance in July 2001 and the provisions of SFAS 142
effective January 1, 2002. No impairment loss was recognized as a result of the transitional impairment tests
required under SFAS 142 as of January 1, 2002 nor the annual test performed as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization are provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Estimated useful lives for buildings are 20-35 years. Assets under capital lease and leasehold
improvements are generally amortized over the life of the respective lease. The useful lives of furniture and
equipment vary from three to seven years. Depreciation expense includes amortization of assets under capital
lease.

We act as custodian of assets where we have contracts to operate facilities or programs owned or leased by
the U.S. Department of Labor, various states and private providers.

Deferred Gains on Sale and Leaseback of A ssets

Gains from the sale and leaseback of assets are deferred and amortized over the term of the operating lease
as a reduction of rental expense.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax
rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance is provided for deferred assets if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the net
deferred tax assets will not be realized.
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Stock Option Plans

As permitted by SFAS No. 148, A ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure,
an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 (SFAS 148), we continue to account for our stock-based employee
compensation plans under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Stock-based employee
compensation cost is not reflected in net income, as ail options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant. The following table illustrates
the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
148 to stock-based employee compensation.

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001

Net income (108$), @S TEPOTLEA ......eurreerrereiirerereeirieesreecsbeses et se e ee e $ 13387 $ 2676 $ (4372
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects..... (3.418) {1,868) (2.530)
Net income (108S), PO fOIMA. .......ecvrveeerieeriieeierieecie e sesesneseinas $ 9969 $ 808 $ (6,902)
Basic earnings (loss) per share

AS TEPOTIEM. .ttt ettt sttt $ 055 $ 011 $ (0.18)

PrO FOTTNA ..ottt sttt st sttt st s e e e 0.41 0.03 (0.28)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

AS TEPOTLEM .. iviiiiirircte ettt ettt ettt et e e ens $ 054 $ 0.11 $ (0.18)

Pro fOIIa oo e 0.40 0.03 (0.28)

The following table sets forth the fair value of each option grant during 2003, 2002 and 2001 using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the applicable weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
Fair value per Option..........coovivvineiiiiiiiicin s $ 247 § 379 § 308
RiSK-fTEE INLETESE TALE ...oveeveieieiieierereeeieeete e ere s e eve e aesessarseesaeseeans 3.27% 3.03% 4.56%
Dividend ViEld ......c.cieiiiiiiiiniiiiriiriirccenie ettt r e ste et a s eneeans 0% 0% 0%
Expected VOLatility ......occevvverieriisieiisisicrie e s 0.62 0.61 0.61
Expected life (In YEATS)...cuiviiarieeieerie et is e sie e rnsseesae s aesseesraesenas 2-4 2-4 2-4

Insurance

We self-insure a substantial portion of our professional and general liability, workers’ compensation and
health benefit risks. Provisions for losses for these risks are based upon actuarially determined estimates. The
allowances for these risks include an amount determined from reported claims and an amount based on past
experiences for losses incurred but not reported. Estimates of workers’ compensation claims reserves are
discounted using a discount rate of approximately 6% and 8% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These
liabilities are necessarily based on estimates and, while we believe that the provision for loss is adequate, the
ultimate liability may be more or less than the amounts recorded. The liabilities are evaluated quarterly and any
adjustments are reflected in earnings in the period known.

Financial Instruments

We used various methods and assumptions in estimating the fair value disclosures for significant financial
instruments. Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their
carrying amount because of the short maturity of those investments. The fair value of long-term debt is determined
using market quotes and calculations based on current market rates available to us.
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Impact of Recently Issued A ccounting Standards

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities. This statement requires that the fair value of a liability associated with an exit or disposal activity be
recognized when the liability is incurred. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 146, certain exit costs were recognized
when we committed to a restructuring plan, which may have been before the liability was incurred. We adopted the
provisions of this statement effective January 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 146 did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation of FASB
Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and a rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34 (FIN 45). FIN 45 elaborates on the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under
guarantees issued as defined within FIN 45. FIN 45 also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken. The initial recognition and
measurement provisions are applicable to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. FIN 45 did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which
was later revised in December 2003 (FIN 46R) to clarify the conditions under which assets, liabilities and activities
of another entity should be consolidated into the financial statements of a company. FIN 46R requires the
consolidation of a variable interest entity (VIE) by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary is
the entity that bears the majority of the risk of loss from the variable interest entity’s activities, is entitled to receive
a majority of the variable interest entity’s residual returns or both. The provisions of FIN 46R are effective on
February 1, 2003 for all variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003; however, for variable interests
acquired prior to February 1, 2003, adoption of the guidance was deferred until periods ending after December 15,
2003. We are party to various management contracts entered into prior to February 1, 2003 with state agencies or
other providers of record that require us to manage the day-to-day operations of facilities or programs.
Additionally, we are party to numerous lease arrangements for facilities we operate. We evaluated whether any of
these management or lease arrangements are variable interests under the provisions of FIN 46R and, if so, whether
we are the primary beneficiary of the variable interest entity. As a result of the evaluation, we determined there
were no entities which required consolidation as a result of adopting FIN 46R. Accordingly, FIN 46R did not have
a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. SFAS 150 affects the issuer’s accounting for certain types of
freestanding financial instruments including mandatorily redeemable shares, put options and forward purchase
contracts, and obligations that can be settled with shares. In addition to its requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial instruments in its scope, SFAS 150 also requires disclosures about alternative ways of
settling the instruments and the capital structure of entities, all of whose shares are mandatorily redeemable. With
certain exceptions, most of the guidance in SFAS 150 is effective for all financial instruments entered into or
modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective as of July 1, 2003. The provisions of SFAS 150 did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2001 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the 2003
presentation.
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2. Other Assets

Other assets are as follows:

December 31

2003 2002
Long-term receivables and advances to managed facilities ..........cccocecuvveernnen. § 5,657 $§ 7,632
Covenants not to compete, net of accumulated amortization ...........c.coeeveeveennn 4,293 5,247
DIEPOSIES ..ottt ettt ea e bt st sttt et eae st ae s ree e ne e te s eneereean e 5,832 4,322
Deferred debt ISSUANCE COSIS ..vvvivnrerrrieiieeieeeereectreesireesssesistrssttrssisssesssasesrsasses 5,344 5,865
OTET ASSEES. oot otriiieriieee i it eeecerreeeette e e s b ereeesbe e s e sanrteessraeessbeeeesabeaesesteessrnbanessnns 1,801 2311
$ 22,927 $ 25377

3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
A summary of changes to goodwill during the year follows:
Disabilities Youth Training
Services Services Services Total

Balance at January 1, 2002.........cccoceeviviereenens $ 194915 % 9,442 § 7,589 $§ 211,946

Goodwill added through acquisitions............ 5,953 357 — 6.310

Balance at December 31, 2002...................... 200,868 9,799 7,589 218,256

Goodwill added through acquisitions............. 831 832 10,387 12,050

Balance at December 31, 2003.......cccooveeiennen. $ 201699 § 10631 $ 17976 $ 230,306

Intangible assets are as follows:
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Accumulated Accumulated

Gross Amortization Gross Amortization

Covenants not t0 COMPELE .........ceereerreruruenne $ 15651 § 11358 $ 15409 § 10,162

Covenants not to compete are comprised of contractual agreements with stated values and terms and are

amortized over the term of the agreements.

Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, was approximately $1.2 million. Estimated

amortization expense for the next five years is as follows:

Year Ending December 31
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A reconciliation of net income and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 as if
we had adopted SFAS 142 effective January 1, 2001, follows:

December 31, 2001
Net Diluted
Income Earnings (Loss)
(Loss) per Share
AS TEPOTTEA ..onvveeiriienecete ettt ettt es et $ 4,372) $ (0.18)
Goodwill amortization, Net Of LAX......cccveerveevirirceeee e eereeeereeeeeeseree e 6,262 0.26
AS AQJUSEEA .ottt ene e $  1.890 $ 008

4, Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is summarized as follows:
December 31

2003 2002
Property and Equipment:
Land and land iMPrOVEMENTS .....ccouvveieuieieet et eesses e seses e seeeas $ 7,790 $ 6,039
Furniture and eqUIPIMENT .........covei ittt etrcienee e st aeee e seeseeansesaas 60,301 51,973
BUILAINZS ...ttt ettt ettt ene e e ereeaes 42,254 34,940
Leasehold iMPTOVEIMENLS ......eeeireiirireririieerieceeseenteerce e ser e nr e sae s b e 16,828 15,875
Equipment under capital 18ase ..........ccoeeeriiccriininiicniiicniccneececne 5,781 2,870
Land and buildings under capital 1ease......c..c.ccocovvenecciniincnincnecnnne 566 3,054
CONSIIUCHION 1N PIOZTESS .veveviriierniirieerienenieerenetsiessenreseenreseenessearssssesesnes — 3.607
133,520 118,358
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization..........ceccecveeeceienescenreeenrenens 65,098 56.690
Net property and equipment $ 68422 $ 61.668

S. Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:
December 31

2003 2002
10.625% senior NOES AUE 2008 ......neiiieeeiieeieeeetee ettt et esereessvaeaaaeessas $ 150,000 $ 150,000
Credit facility . cevriiii e — —
6% convertible subordinated notes, net of unamortized discount of
BTA9 00 2002 ..ottt era e e — 90,602
5.9% convertible subordinated notes due 2005 ........ccovveveeieeviirereeees i 12,759 15,613
Term 10an due 2008..........coouviriiiieirie et sreeese e sree v tesestesabraebeens ‘ 22,000 —
Notes payable and Other ...t 852 2,492
185,611 258,707
LLeSS CUITENE POTTION L..cviveueiiietitertei ettt et siese sttt sse et entanese s sesaees 3.857 329

$ 181,754 $ 258,378

On November 15, 2001, we completed the issuance of $150 million of 10.625% Senior Notes due
November 2008. Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually and the notes may be redeemed, in whole or in part,
any time on or after November 15, 2005 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus a
premium declining ratably to par, plus accrued interest. The senior notes contain certain covenants restricting our
ability to incur additional indebtedness (including the maintenance of a specified leverage ratio), pay dividends,
enter into certain mergers, enter in sale and leaseback transactions and sell or otherwise dispose of assets.
Additionally, the agreement places limits on the allowable amount of judgments or orders for the payment of
money by a court of law.

F-13




On December 31, 2003, we completed an agreement for a $135 million senior credit facility and the
redemption of our 6% convertible subordinated notes due December 2004. This senior credit facility, due in
January 2008, replaces the previously held $80 million credit facility with National City Bank (NCB facility).
Bank One Capital Markets led the syndication for the senior credit facility, which includes a $100 million revolver
and a $35 million term loan. The revolver includes a $65 million sub-limit for letters of credit. In December, we
formally issued the notice to call the 6% convertible subordinated notes, which were redeemed on January 12,
2004. We funded the redemption and were relieved as primary obligor on December 31, 2003, with $22 million
from the term loan and the remainder from cash on hand. The balance of the term loan facility is undrawn. The
interest rate on the term loan is based on margins over LIBOR or prime, tiered based upon leverage calculation. As
of December 31, 2003, the rate applicable for the term loan was 4.2%.

We recorded a pre-tax charge of approximately $2.5 million in 2003 related to the refinancing and
redemption of the 6% convertible subordinated notes, including the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs,
premiums paid to noteholders for early redemption, and costs of a related consent solicitation.

As of December 31, 2003, we had irrevocable standby letters of credit in the principal amount of $41.7
million issued primarily in connection with our insurance programs. As of December 31, 2003, we had $46.2
million available under the revolver as our borrowing base under the revolver was $87.8 million on that date. Our
borrowing base is a function of our accounts receivable as of the reporting date. The interest rate on the revolver is
based on margins over LIBOR or prime, tiered based upon leverage calculations. The rate applicable based on the
six-month LIBOR was 4.2% as of December 31, 2003 compared to the NCB facility interest rate of 4.1% (based
on margins over LIBOR) as of December 31, 2002.

The 5.9% convertible subordinated notes are convertible into common stock at a conversion price of
$25.84 per share.

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ending December 31

2004 ..o bbbtttk b s e b e e e a et ne $ 3857
2005 ...ttt et e et h e e e b s e SR bt sa bt et et eae b et n s eba bt b e s et ereetes 16,584
2000 ...ttt et etk r ekttt b et e ks ebenr et aeaesheeae b et s 3,556
2007 et bttt e et s e ae R e bR R ae bRt bkt e e s eba et s s et 3,534
2008 ...ttt et a bR e h ke AR e h e Rt s st e R e b nk et s hea s e b beebea s e e ebt et ket ennens 158,037
TRETEALIET ...ttt et sa e bt st es e eb et e bt et e sbeae s be s enesreeinenn 43

$ 185,611
6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses are summarized as follows:
December 31

2003 2002
Wages and PAYTOLL LAXES ..v..vverrverireerieireeteeiseeereeesiessenseaes s sesee st asecnenes $ 21,318 $ 20,400
Compensated aDSENCES .........eccevverivereeiirererece ettt eee s e sbesbe st e e 11,109 10,822
WOTKers’ COMPENSAION ....occcierieerieiireercretaereresreasreasteeeeseesabesresrenesaessueenresnnne 20,233 12,991
Taxes other thaf INCOIMIE CAXES ..vuvuiiriiiiriieiiiiirreierieeerieeeeseetssesesssssssssssaressesssssssens 2,095 1,763
G113 () OO T SO PO SRR P UURUUUIIN 2,158 3,090
L0 11 4T3 OO UE OO ST OSSOSO 10,066 12,441

$_66979 $ 61,507
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7. Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income from continuing operations is summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
Federal:
CUITEIL .ottt ettt ea e s st erebaerenssbeasstensesensnessenssasaes $ 3,715 $ (7,408) $ 3,755
DIEFEITEA ...ttt et eb e st s e st s ere s esaesaassatesrne s erenns 2,265 8,254 (5,703)
TOLAL FEACTAL c.nvvveeiiceiiie et ettt sttt ee e e eetee e s ssraeesssessbavssaanne 5,980 846 (1,948)
State and local:
CUITEME oo e erveeeei s ete et eeee e ee b eete e eee s s e eb e e tn s ebeseabesstesabesassarbenssssareessnsentns 1,177 (1,469) 1,460
DEIEITEA ...ttt et e ot e e ee s e ae et een s s et e ans 373 2,129 (1,428)
Total state and 10Cal..........ooovereieiiiciieceiecccct et 1,550 660 32
Total income tax expense (benefit)..........ccccovvvenriveerierenrinenreenennens $ 7530 $ 1506 $ _(1.916)

A reconciliation of the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 35% to income tax expense expressed as a percent
of pretax income follows:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001

Federal income tax at the statutory Tate........ccooevinieininnncnicnnenccne 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in income taxes:

State taxes, net of federal benefit........c.coceviveiiiiiiiii e, 39 4.9 5.0

Foreign income taxes, net of federal credits ...........coccoeeveneniinnnecinenenen 0.5 6.3 (1.7

Nondeductible amortization of g20odWill ........cccocvevicceeviircviicreceer e — — (22.5)

JObS tax Credits, MEL......occviieieiiiiie ettt ee e e e seere e eetraabeeeas (5.0) (24.9) 16.6

Other nondeductible EXPENSES ......cevriiicieiiireiinteitenirereesriesieesteeseesseesesins 1.6 14.7 (1.9

36.0% 36.0% 30.5%

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we credited additional paid-in capital for the
tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options in the amounts of $417, $155 and $32, respectively.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are presented below:

December 31

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE ..ot eteeee et ee et eetseveee e s e et e eeeeaeeee e eeae e neenes $ 3,682 $ 3,052
Workers’ COMPENSAION COSES ....cevverieniiriintirirerieeteeerreeeeseere e srenseeseesreenee s 7,842 5,106
Compensated aDSEICES. .......cvveireireereareerirenieerestesretse e rerseseeresresreseesesseerenes 2,826 2,678
Other INSUTANCE TESEIVES ....vvvienivieiierierreriireesietresesirteseeaseesseeeesossneeeessstensessrraes 1,987 2,989
Other 1iabilities and TESEIVES.......iciveveiiircrrreecieotireees et reeesserrnraeeessesss sernanes 1,582 1,899
Deferred gains and TEVENUES ........ccuivevuieririineenieenrenenere e sbee st resenne 2,603 2,640
ORET vttt ettt ettt e st e et s et s s eateseaee s st e s rtesabaeeab s eebaaenbreeeabteans 754 876
Total deferred taX ASSELS .ivvuvrrereiiiieereiirreeeeeierteretee st rsrerreessestreneenereens 21,276 19,240
Deferred tax liabilities:
Goodwill and other intangible assets ......c...cocvmiirieinieniecct i e 12,114 8,017
OHRET oot ettt et e e st e s esab e s e s nbbe e s sressanretassenantaas 871 294
Total deferred tax Habilities.......ooovovveiiineeiiiiee e eereeeeree e 12,985 8.311
Net deferred taX @SSEL...ciuniiiiire it eebtrreesseerrareetseaesserssrnns § 8291 $ 10,929
Classified as follows:
Current deferred INCOME tAX ASSEL.u.uivveiicivireiierrieiireesiiireresierreessreeeinsereessnneacs $ 18,115 $ 16,621
Noncurrent deferred income tax liability ........c.cocooeevvenenncieieiiecncneienenn, (9.824) (5.692)
Net deferred taX aSSEL...vcuuviiiieeieiiirieeeee et e e s eeeree e s e eeevttr e e e s s rerearrreeas $ 8291 $ 10929

No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was provided as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, nor was
there any change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon us generating future taxable income when temporary
differences become deductible. Based upon the historical and projected levels of taxable income, we believe it is
more likely than not that we will realize the benefits of the deductible differences.
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8. Eamings per Share

The following data shows the amounts used in computing earnings per share and the effect on income and
the weighted average number of shares of dilutive potential common stock.

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001

Income (loss) attributable to shareholders for basic and diluted

EANINGS PET SHATE .....vevieieiieieieieeetet et es et sens s ene $ 13387 § 2676 $ (4.372)
Weighted average number of common shares used in basic

EAIMINES PET ShATE ..c..oiiiiiiiiiiiic e 24,500 24,409 24,357
Effect of dilutive securities:

SEOCK OPHIONS......cuiouiiiitiiitiini ittt sn et sbe e e saanrenes 301 141 —
Weighted number of common shares and dilutive potential common

shares used in diluted earnings per Share............ccocveviveeiireenccncnceninenn. 24,801 24.550 24,357

The average shares listed below were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share
because to do so would have been antidilutive for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
Convertible SUDOTAINAtEd NOES .....cooivnieiiieeee ettt e e aranr e 5,319 5,646 6,474
StOCK OPHIONS ..ttt sttt sttt era v ens 2,035 1,849 1,905

F-17




9. Segment Information

We have three reportable operating segments: (i) Disabilities Services, (ii) Youth Services and (iii)
Training Services. We evaluate performance based on profit or loss from operations before interest and income
taxes. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. Intersegment revenues and transfers are not significant.

The following table sets forth information about reportable operating income or loss and segment assets:

. Disabilities Youth Training All Consolidated

As of and for the year ended December 31: Services Services Services Other Totals
2003

REVENUES ..eveeeeeeeeeeeeee et eee e e eeeeeeeeseeesreseeeeseeaeneas $740305 $ 52,120 $ 168,908 $ — $ 961,333
Operating iNCOME .....c.ovviveirimneririninrereeinreieneerenees 67,019 2,660 18,750 (43,186) 45,243
TOtAl ASSEES cvvveivvieveiieeii ettt r e 354,279 33,172 46,861 68,714 503,026
Capital eXpengitures .........c.coocevvieviriveicen e 4,715 2,112 110 7,204 14,141
Depreciation and amortization ............cocceverrcerecennens 6,946 1,289 28 3,991 12,254
2002

REVENUES ..ottt $717,335 $§ 55975 $ 146,414 $ — $ 919,724
Operating INCOMIE .....c.eeevrvirerrierereserrcereeeveeeea e 47,983 1,996 15,367 (36,866) 28,480
TOLAl ASSELS ...vvevveeeeeeiceeeecee e eeree et e rtee e s e eeveeerae s 377,045 41,464 22,114 105,989 546,612
Capital expenditures ..........cccoeerecensererreensiecesreres e 6,966 2,500 — 4,226 13,692
Depreciation and amortization .........c..ccocveeivnieneere. 7,893 1,226 — 2,743 11,862
2001

REVETIULS ..ottt evae s st esttssressnenesteenes $690,187 $ 58,874 $ 136,654 $ — $ 885,715
Operating iNCOME ......c.orveeerererrererierreeeenrrereeeseenenee 35,470 691 14,192 (37,580) 12,773
TOtAl ASSELS ...vveeevveeerveeereeeeirecerieeereeeeeeeeesevireeeareeenees 398,708 33,214 30,302 72,712 534,936
Capital expenditures .........ccocvevecireeierenrercsieeeereeesnns 5,311 1,509 — 2,503 9,323
Depreciation and amortization ...........cccrvevernvennnens 16,519 1,669 294 2,597 21,079

10. Benefit Plans

We sponsor retirement savings plans which were established to assist eligible employees in providing for
their future retirement needs. Our contributions to the plans were $3.3 million, $2.9 million and $2.9 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

We also sponsor various stock option plans under which we may grant options to our salaried officers and
employees for up to 5,826,095 shares of common stock. Under the plans, the exercise price of each option equals
the market price of our stock on the date of grant, and an option’s maximum term is normally five years. Generally
all options have varied vesting schedules, varying between 20% and 50% at date of grant with the remaining
options vesting over one to four years.

Under separate stock option plans, we may grant up to 190,000 shares to non-employee members of the
Board of Directors at an exercise price which cannot be less than the fair market value on the date of grant.
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Stock option activity, including options granted to employees and non-employee directors, is shown
below:

2003 2002 2001

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of year ............... 2,517,766 $ 1042 2,804,627 $ 11.02 2,399,589 § 12.83
Granted.......ccoocveeveerienireerrriieneresreesrereenne 1,789,124 4.53 357,250 7.71 925,750 5.69
EXErcised ......occciiiiinniiiiacnentecteaaeesnnens (359,863) 3.76 (42,975) 492 (56,420) 6.14
Canceled or expired..........ccoccoveevvircnveencnns (893.666) 1449 _ (601.136) 11.85 _ (464.292) 9.99
Outstanding at end of year............cccoocenn.ee _3.053.361 6.61 _2,517,766 1046 _2,804,627 11.03
Exercisable at end of year...........ccccoeeeeeene. 2144918 $ 6.82 _1,813971 $ 11.86 _1.828358 $ 1272

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Range of Number Weighted-Average Number

Exercise Outstanding at Remaining Weighted-Average Exercisable at Weighted-Average

Prices December 31,2003  Contractual Life Exercise Price December 31, 2003 Exercise Price

$ 279 t0 499 880,186 4.1 vyears § 3.25 692,553 $ 3.11

500to 9.99 1,923,825 34 years 6.88 1,208,265 7.02

10.00 to 23.50 249.350 0.7 years 16.46 244,100 16.38

3,053,361 34 years § 6.61 2,144,918 $ 6.82

11, Lease Arrangements

We lease certain operating facilities, office space, vehicles and equipment under operating leases which
expire at various dates. Total rent expense was approximately $45.5 million, $43.9 million and $42.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. We also lease certain land and buildings used in
operations under capital leases. These leases expire at various dates through 2018 (including renewal options) and
generally require us to pay property taxes, insurance and maintenance costs.
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Future minimum lease payments under capital leases, together with the minimum lease payments required
under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year at December
31, 2003, are as follows:

Capital Operating

Year Ended December 31 Leases Leases
2004 ... et bbbt e b ettt e be e e n et e eae e neas $ 1,596 $ 30,264
2005 ..ottt e et a e 1,292 26,353
2006 ...t ettt et ee 1,287 22,621
2007 oot et e et et tre e 284 18,313
2008 ...ttt et be bR b e e 188 13,625
TRELEATTET .....oeiiceeree ettt et s at e eannes 276 45.171

Total MinimMum l€ase PAYIMENLS .....cccuveveeririiernieirenie et se e reeeseesrenens 4923 § 156,347
Less amounts representing INEIES........c.vecrverrecrieceriereriereiseesiesesesesreesseseerenens 849
Present value of minimum lease payments........c.coccoccreieririineinicoenereese e e 4,074
LSS CUITent MAatULITIES ......oocuevviiiiieiieie sttt ettt 1,252
Total long-term obligations under capital leases............ccvceriveincreeincineinnecns $ 2,822

During 2001, we entered into various transactions for the sale of certain real properties in which we
conduct operations. Proceeds from the sales were approximately $23.0 million. The assets are being leased back
from the purchasers over terms ranging from five years to 15 years. The leases are being accounted for as operating
leases. The transactions resulted in gains of approximately $3.1 million, which are being amortized over the
respective lease terms.

12. Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximated carrying value because of the short-term nature of these instruments. The fair value
of our other financial instruments subject to fair value disclosures are as follows:

2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount  Value

Long-term debt:

10.625% SENIOL NOES ...c.vveeeveeireeereeeevee e sieeesaeesreeeereeennes $ 150,000 $ 158,250 $ 150,000 $ 108,750
6% convertible subordinated notes ............cocvvevvieeieienreennnn. — — 90,602 74,294
5.9% convertible subordinated notes .........ccocevvviveeeieeennneennn. 12,759 12,759 15,613 12,647
TerM IOAN c..viiiiicece et 22,000 22,000 — —
Notes payable and other..........occceeiviieniinienienncreecr e, 852 852 6,209 6,209

We estimated the fair value of the debt instruments using market quotes and calculations based on current
market rates available to us.

13. Change in Estimate

Effective January 1, 2002, we changed our accounting estimates related to depreciation of certain assets
associated with our accounts receivable and time and attendance management systems. The estimated useful lives
of these assets were extended four years, based on the expected useful lives of the respective systems. As a result
of the change, net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 was increased by approximately $0.3 million, or
$0.01 per diluted share.
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14. Commitments and Contingencies

In July 2000, American International Specialty Lines Insurance Company, or AISL, filed a Complaint for
Declaratory Judgment against us and certain of our subsidiaries in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District
of Texas, Houston Division. In the Complaint, AISL sought a declaration of what insurance coverage was
available to ResCare in the case styled In re: Estate of Trenia Wright, Deceased, et al. v. Res-Care, Inc., et al.,
which was filed in Probate Court No. 1 of Harris County, Texas (the Lawsuit). After the filing, we entered into an
agreement with AISL whereby any settlement reached in the Lawsuit would not be dispositive of whether the
claims in the Lawsuit were covered under the insurance policies issued by AISL. AISL thereafter settled the
Lawsuit for $9 million. It is our position that: (i) the Lawsuit initiated coverage under policies of insurance in more
than one policy year, thus affording adequate coverage to settle the Lawsuit within coverage and policy limits, (i1)
AISL waived any applicable exclusions for punitive damages by its failure to send a timely reservation of rights
letter and (iii) the decision by the Texas Supreme Court in King v. Dallas Fire Insurance Company, 85 S.W.3d 185
(Tex. 2002) controls. Prior to the Texas Supreme Court’s decision in the King case, summary judgment was
granted in favor of AISL but the scope of the order was unclear. Based on the King decision, the summary
judgment was set aside. Thereafter subsequent motions for summary judgment filed by both AISL and ResCare
were denied. The case was tried, without a jury, in late December 2003. No decision has been received from the
Court. We have not made any provision in our consolidated financial statements for any potential liability that may
result from final adjudication of this matter, as we do not believe it is probable that an unfavorable outcome will
result from this matter. Based on the advice of counsel, we do not believe it is probable that the ultimate resolution
of this matter will result in a material liability to us nor have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
condition, results of operations or liquidity.

On September 2, 2001, in a case styled Nellie Lake, Individually as an Heir-at-Law of Christina Zellner,
deceased; and as Personal Representative of the Estate of Christina Zellner v. Res-Care, Inc., et al., in the U.S.
District Court of the District of Kansas at Wichita, a jury awarded noneconomic damages to Ms. Lake in the
amount of $100,000, the statutory maximum, as well as $5,000 for economic loss. In addition, the jury awarded the
Estate of Christina Zellner $5,000 of noneconomic damages and issued an advisory opinion recommending an
award of $2.5 million in punitive damages. The judge, however, was not required to award the amount of punitive
damages recommended by the jury and on February 4, 2002, entered a punitive damage judgment in the amount of
$1 million. Based on the advice of counsel, we appealed the award of punitive damages, based on numerous
appealable errors at trial and have since settled the case, without any contribution from AISL, for approximately
$750,000. Prior to settlement, in July 2002 we filed a Declaratory Judgment action against AISL in the United
States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky, Louisville Division, alleging that the policy should be
interpreted under Kentucky law, thus affording us coverage. We have since sought leave of court to amend our
complaint for breach of contract, bad faith insurance practices, as well as unfair claims practices under applicable
Kentucky statutes. In addition, ResCare has filed a motion for judgment on the pleadings in regard to its
declaration of rights action. In the interim, AISL filed a motion to transfer this action to the District of Kansas,
which was granted. ResCare has filed a writ of mandamus with the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals asking that the
Western District of Kentucky be required to retain jurisdiction. Based on the advice of counsel, we believe any
damages resulting from this matter are covered by insurance and, accordingly, we have not made any provision in
our consolidated financial statements for any potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this
matter. Further, we believe that recovery of the settlement is probable and, therefore we do not believe that the
ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results
of operations or liquidity.

In September 1997, a lawsuit, styled Nancy Chesser v. Normal Life of Texas, Inc., and Normal Life, Inc.
District Court of Travis County, Texas was filed against a Texas facility operated by the former owners of Normal
Life, Inc. and Normal Life of North Texas, Inc., one of our subsidiaries, asserting causes of action for negligence,
intentional infliction of emotional distress and retaliation regarding the discharge of residents of the facility. In
May 2000, a judgment was entered in favor of the plaintiff awarding the plaintiff damages, prejudgment interest
and attorneys’ fees totaling $4.8 million. In October 2000, ResCare and AISL entered into an agreement whereby
any settlement reached in Chesser and a related lawsuit also filed in the District Court of Travis County, Texas
would not be dispositive of whether the claims in those suits were covered under the policies issued by AISL.
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AISL thereafter settled the suits and in October 2000 filed a Complaint for Declaratory Judgment against Normal
Life of North Texas, Inc. and Normal Life, Inc. in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas
Division. In the Complaint, AISL seeks a declaration of what insurance coverage is available to ResCare in the
lawsuits. It is our position that the lawsuits initiated coverage under the primary policies of insurance, thus
affording adequate coverage to settle the lawsuits within coverage and policy limits. The trial of this declaratory
judgment action previously scheduled to occur in March 2002 and December 2002 has been postponed with no
new trial date set. The parties are currently in settlement discussions and we have established a reserve in our
consolidated financial statements for any potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter.
Based on the advice of counsel, we do not believe it is probable that the ultimate resolution of this matter will
result in an additional material liability to us nor have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In December 1999, a lawsuit styled James Michael Godfrey and Sherry Jo Lusk v. Res-Care, Inc., was
filed in Superior Court of Catawba County, North Carolina, by the former owners of Access, Inc., one of our
subsidiaries, claiming fraud and unfair and deceptive trade practices. On July 29, 2002, a judgment was entered in
favor of the plaintiff awarding the plaintiff damages of $990,000 with interest of $330,000 from December 1,
1999. Based on the advice of counsel, we have appealed the award of damages, based on numerous appealable
errors at trial. The case has been briefed to the North Carolina Court of Appeals and scheduled for oral argument
on March 29, 2004. In our opinion, after consulting with outside counsel, substantial grounds exist for a successful
appeal. We have not made any provision in our consolidated financial statements for any potential liability that
may result from final adjudication of this matter. Based on the advice of counsel, we do not believe it is probable
that the ultimate resolution of this matter will result in a material liability to us nor have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

On June 21, 2002, we were notified that our mental health services subsidiary was the subject of an
investigation concerning allegations relating to services provided by the subsidiary under various programs
sponsored by Medicaid. The subsidiary under investigation is a non-core operation that provides skills training to
persons with severe mental illness in Texas. The mental health operation was managed by its founders under a
management contract until September 30, 2003 and represents less than 0.5% of the total revenues of the
Disabilities Services division. During the third quarter of 2002, we received a Civil Investigative Demand from the
Texas Attorney General (TAG) requesting the production of a variety of documents relating to the subsidiary. The
aforementioned investigation was a result of a Civil False Claims Act lawsuit filed under seal by a former
employee of the subsidiary on June 18, 2001, on behalf of the employee, the United States Government and the
State of Texas. The lawsuit, styled United States of America and State of Texas, ex rel. Jennifer Hudnall vs. The
Citadel Group, Inc., et al. was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas
Division. On June 21, 2002, the seal was partially lifted for the sole purpose of informing us of the lawsuit. In
March 2003, the Texas Attorney General intervened in the case and in May 2003, filed under seal, a separate
complaint. In July 2003, the U.S. Department of Justice notified us that they were not intervening in the case but
would remain a real party in interest. On November 6, 2003, the U.S. District Court lifted the seal, thus making the
lawsuit public. We have cooperated with the TAG in providing requested documents and engaged special counsel
to conduct an internal investigation of the allegations. Based on the results of our investigation, we believe that the
subsidiary has complied with the applicable rules and regulations governing the provision of mental health services
in the State of Texas. Although we cannot predict the outcome of the lawsuit with certainty, and we have incurred
and could continue to incur significant legal expenses in connection with document production and our response,
we do not believe the ultimate resolution of the lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In July 2002, Lexington Insurance Company (Lexington) filed a Complaint for Declaratory Action against
one of our subsidiaries, EduCare Community Living Corporation — Gulf Coast, in the U.S. District Court for the
Southern District of Texas, Houston Division. In the Complaint, Lexington sought a declaration of what insurance
coverage was available in the case styled William Thurber and Kathy Thurber, et al v. EduCare Community Living
Corporation — Gulf Coast (EduCare), which was filed in the 23™ Judicial District Court of Brazoria County, Texas.
After the filing, we entered into an agreement with Lexington whereby any settlement reached in Thurber would
not be dispositive of whether the claims were covered by insurance. Lexington and EduCare thereafter contributed
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$1.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively, and settled the Thurber lawsuit. In the declaratory judgment action,
Lexington contends that the $1.0 million previously paid satisfies all coverage obligations. Both EduCare and
Lexington filed motions for summary judgment which are currently pending before the Court. After consulting
with outside counsel, we expect $1.0 million of our contribution to the settlement to be reimbursed by Lexington
under the primary policy. We established a reserve in the consolidated financial statements for any potential
liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter. Further, we believe that recovery of $1.0 million of
the settlement is probable and, therefore, we do not believe that the ultimate resolution of this matter will have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In August 1998, with the approval of the State of Indiana, we relocated approximately 100 individuals
from three of our larger facilities to community-based settings. In June 1999, in a lawsuit styled Omega Healthcare
Investors, Inc. v. Res-Care Health Services, Inc., the lessor of these facilities filed suit against us in U.S. District
Court, Southern District of Indiana, alleging in connection therewith breach of contract, conversion and fraudulent
concealment. In January 2001, January 2002 and July 2002, Omega filed amended complaints alleging wrongful
conduct in the appraisal process for the 1999 purchase of three other facilities located in Indiana, for conversion of
the Medicaid certifications of the 1998 Indiana facilities and a facility in Kentucky that downsized in 1999, and for
breach of contract in allowing the Kentucky facility to be closed. The parties had filed various motions for partial
summary judgment. The Court has now denied Omega’s motion seeking summary judgment on breach of contract
on the termination of the three Indiana facility leases in 1998, the Kentucky lease termination and the 1999
purchase of three facilities in Indiana. In addition, the Court has granted ResCare’s motion on the “unjust
enrichment” and “conversion” of the Medicaid certifications, as well as the lease termination of the Kentucky
facility. A trial date of February 2004 was cancelled and no new date has been assigned. On the advice of counsel,
we believe that the amount of damages being sought by the plaintiffs is now approximately $9.4 million. We
believe that this lawsuit is without merit and will defend it vigorously. We do not believe it is probable that the
ultimate resolution of this matter will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results
of operations or liquidity.

In February 2002, a lawsuit previously filed in Texas State Court styled PosA bilities, Inc. v. EduCare
Community Living Corporation — America, Inc. and Res-Care, Inc. was removed to the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas. In this action, PosAbilities alleges breach of contract, breach of fiduciary
duty, fraud and conversion in the performance of administrative services by EduCare and seeks actual damages in
excess of $1,000,000 along with unspecified punitive damages and attorney fees. We have filed a counterclaim
where it is our position that a proper accounting demonstrates that a substantial liability is owed to EduCare from
PosAbilities, and accordingly, at the trial scheduled for March 2004, we will seek to recover from PosAbilities a
net amount of approximately $700,000. We have not made any provision in our consolidated financial statements
for any potential liability that may result from final adjudication of this matter. Based on the advice of counsel, we
do not believe it is probable that ultimate resolution of this matter will result in a liability to us nor have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

In addition, we are a party to various other legal and/or administrative proceedings arising out of the
operation of our facilities and programs and arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe that, generally,
these claims are without merit. Further, many of such claims may be covered by insurance. We do not believe the
results of these proceedings or claims, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
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15. Related Party Transactions

Prior to June 1, 2003, a director of ResCare, who was a founder of PeopleServe, Inc., had an interest in
partnerships that owned approximately 74 properties that are leased to subsidiaries of ResCare or to non-profit
agencies with which subsidiaries of ResCare have management agreements. The leases were originated by
PeopleServe, Inc. prior to 1999 and generally had original terms ranging from 10 to 25 years. These leases
remained after the merger with PeopleServe, Inc. in June 1999. Rental expense under the 42 leases with the
ResCare subsidiaries totaled approximately $1.3 million annually. ResCare subsidiaries had guarantee obligations
with respect to certain of the indebtedness of the lessor partnerships.

Effective June 1, 2003, the leases with the partnerships were terminated and new leases were executed.
The director maintains a partnership interest in 36 properties that are leased to subsidiaries of ResCare or to non-
profit agencies with which subsidiaries of ResCare have management agreements. The new leases have initial
terms of five years with two five-year renewals. Rental expense under the new leases on these 36 properties totals
approximately $1.5 million annually. Under the new arrangement, ResCare subsidiaries are released from their
guarantee obligations on indebtedness of the prior lessor partnerships.

We aiso lease certain of our facilities under an operating lease with a real estate investment trust in which
our chairman is a member of the trust’s board of directors. The lease commenced in October 1998 and extends
through 2010. Lease payments to the trust approximated $0.8 million for each of the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001. Aggregate annual rentals are estimated to be approximately $5.6 million, subject to annual
increases based on the consumer price index.

16. Subsequent Event

On March 10, 2004, we announced that Onex Partners LP has agreed to purchase $50.5 million of newly
issued convertible preferred stock. The transaction is expected to close in the third quarter of 2004, subject to
regulatory and shareholder approvals, as may be determined. In a related transaction, Onex Partners also agreed to
purchase 3.7 million common shares from our company’s founder, James R. Fornear, and two other insiders upon
the closing of preferred stock sale. As a result of these transactions, Onex Partners would hold approximately 30%
of the voting rights of our company.

The preferred shares will be convertible into approximately 4.8 million shares of ResCare common stock
based upon a $10.50 value per common share. The preferred shares will have voting rights based upon the initial
conversion ratio. Under the terms of the transaction, Onex Partners will have the ongoing right to elect two Onex
representatives to our nine member Board of Directors and the right also to appoint two additional independent
directors to vacancies on the Board. The four new directors will replace four retiring Board members.
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17. Quarterly Data (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total

2003

REVENUES ..ooviiniiriiriiceiticnien e e $ 238,544 $ 238,293 § 240,508 $ 243,988 $ 961,333
Facility and program contribution ..........c...ccoveuee. 24,466 24,068 22,359 24,979 95,872
NEt INCOME ...covrvereeriiieeriiererieniereteer e eeesreseraeens 3,448 4,230 3,213 2,496 13,387
Basic earnings per share ..........cccooeeereevenivienicnenneen 0.14 0.17 0.13 0.10 0.55
Diluted earnings per share...........cccoceeerevenicrierinnnns 0.14 0.17 0.13 0.10 0.54
2002

REVENUES ..ottt $ 222914 $ 229,866 $ 233,120 $ 233,824 § 919,724
Facility and program contribution ..........c.ccccoveeneennn. 21,972 22,892 22,773 6,771 74,408
Net Income (JOSS)..cvviieiirreeeiiieeee e e 2,445 3,644 3,686 (7,099) 2,676
Basic earnings (loss) per share ...........ccccvccevcnnencnnee 0.10 0.15 0.15 (0.29) 0.11
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ..........ccccccvvverennee. 0.10 0.15 0.15 (0.29) 0.11

During the periods presented, we recorded the following significant items:

Diluted
Pre-tax Net Eamings
Statement of Income Quarter Income Income per Share

Line Item Impacted Recorded Impact Impact Impact

(For the year ended)
Year Ended December 31, 2003:
Refinancing charge Q) Other operating expense 4" $ (2,545) $ (1,629) $ 0.07)

Gains on debt extinguishment @ Other operating income ~ 2™ & 3“ 306 196 0.01

$ (2,239 $ (1.433) §____(0.06)

Year Ended December 31, 2002:

Write-off of doubtful Facility and program 4" $ (14,764) $ (9,522) $ (0.39)
accounts receivable ) expenses

Costs associated with Facility and program 4™ (1,476) (952) (0.04)
non-core operation expenses

Gains on debt extinguishment © Other operating income 3 1,277 823 0.04

$ (14963) § 9.651) § (0.39)

). We recorded a pre-tax charge of $2.5 million related to the refinancing and redemption of our 6% convertible subordinated

notes, including write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs, premiums paid to note holders for early redemption, and costs
of a related consent solicitation.

@ . During 2003, we completed transactions to redeem $4.3 million and $2.9 million of our 6% and 5.9% convertible
subordinated notes, respectively, resulting in gains on extinguishment of debt of $0.3 million (30.2 million and $0.1 million
related to second and third quarter, respectively).

. The $14.8 million accounts receivable write-off in the fourth quarter eliminates substantially all trade receivables with dates
of service 2000 and prior. We wrote-off the amounts after consideration of the deterioration in various states’ budgets and the
resulting impact on opportunities for collection.

@ . The non-core operation charge relates to costs associated with an investigation and closure of certain units of a non-core
operation which provides skills training to persons with severe mental illness in Texas. The mental health operation is
managed by its founders under a management contract and represents less than 1% of the total revenues of the Disabilities
Services division.

. During 2002, we completed transactions to redeem $6.0 million of the 6% convertible subordinated notes resulting in gains
on extinguishment of debt of approximately $1.3 million.
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ResCare, Inc.

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Additions
Balance at  Charged to Deductions Balance
Beginning Costs and at End
of Period Expenses Write-offs  Reclassifications  of Period

(In thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable:

Year ended December 31, 2003 ....cccceeiveviiniinnne $ 7665 % 7,328 $ (5,529) $ — $ 9,464
Year ended December 31, 2002.....cccovveevreennneen. 33,013 19,566 (43,414) (1,500) 7,665
Year ended December 31, 2001......cc.oovvvieen. 17,527 19,293  (3,807) — 33,013
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enny Howard gives it his all during a softball throw event for
Special Olympics in Austin, TX. He also enjoys competing in

bowling tournaments. Mr. Howard receives services through
EduCare Community Living, a ResCare company.

Board of Directors

Ronald G. Geary
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We ar ResCare are dedicared and caring people
who together torm a human service company
providing qualicy supports to enhance che fives

of individuals.

We commir to effectively manage our resources
i order co fulfill our responsibilities
to the people we support, our emiplovees,

OLr customers L\Hd our Comnunicies,

We serve with respect, compassion and skill.

Building Lives, Reaching Porential.
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10140 Linn Station Road
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